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Tape Number
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Meter #

Tape #1

0.0 - 54.9

Tape #1

NDUS
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0.0 - 44.0

Tape #1

Health Dept’

44.0 - 50.5

Tape #2

Health Dept

0.0-7.0

Tape #2

Job Service

70-21.0

Tape #2

Energy Programs

21.0-35.7

Tape #2

Ind Com

oo |

35,7 - 49.6

Minutes:

Senator Nething opened the hearing on SB2023.

: ~ ) r
Committee Clerk Signature W_MW

Larry Isaak, Chancellor of the North Dakota University System (NDUS), presented some

comments regarding the review process for the State Board of Higher Education (SBHE)

priority list,

Laura Glatt, Vice Chancellor for Administrative Affaits, NDUS, presented testimony on SB2023

regarding campus capital projects ( a copy of documentation is attached).

| Senator Robinson: bring us up to date regarding the process/formula level of local funds?

Example: MSU «- {s there? Consist?

" Yice Chancellor Glatt: SBHE priority list -~ no hard fast formula used state and local. MSU

renovating the whole building, the auditorium is used by many organizations within the
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community-- so expenditures direct to the auditorium were identified for the local amounts --

there has now been increases and local funds will be needed for utilitics and maintenance.
Senator Robinson: When reviewing processes on improvements on heating systoms -- do you go
the economical route for short term --- example; 2 years ago VCSU updated their system -- now
the cost of oil has increased --- do you consider the heat source when reviewing heat systems?
Sheila Peterson, OMB: OMB does look at that --- renovation or replacement, Does consider
alternative fuels, Due to budget constraints it is difficult decisions as to short term or long term
fix. Price of gas made us look at coal -- we search for the best for long term when/if possible,
Larry Eide, Senior Vice President, Minot State University (MSU) presented testimony on MSU
Old Main/McFarland Auditorium ( a copy of his testimony {s attached).

ngmjﬂm: 4-6 yoars ago -- there was a request for dollars to put a fire escape in Old
Main...done? Little update? Plans to remove? Remain? There was a reccnt‘ﬁre at your campus
--this building?

Senicr Vice President Eide: There were two appropriation requests -- 400 thousand and 444

thousand; fours years to complete -- blue area on the maps included in packet show the stairs and
the exterior stair well --- which was just completed. The interior is on opposite side of the
building; before there was only one in the center, A sprinkler system with automatic door closers
were also installed. The firc was in a different building.

Senstor Holmberg: Ave windows energy efficient? Need new?

Senior Vice President Eide: Yes the windows are energy efficient, Very few will be replaced --

 majority were new several years ago,

Dave Clatk, Vice President of Oper & Corp & Cont Ed at Bismarck State College (BSC)

. mted information on the BSC Schafer Hall Renovation ( a copy of testimony is attached).
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BSC has recently been alerted to new plumbing codes which may effect the mechanical portion
of the project. Estimate is 1.4 million for both floors.

Senator Bowman: Phase 1, and phase 2 ---from an investment stand point couldn’t one save a
little if done at the same time? Cost us more to do in 2 pleces?

Yice President Clark: Economic scale indicated larger projects - bigger volume -- is a better
price. Bids are affected by the number of jobs in the community.

Senator Bowman: Project on line to do -- system figure most cost effective -~ little here/little
there -- far more expensive than to do it the first time,

Yice Pregident Clark: Primarily look at the whole project, OMB takes all into consideration--
2nd and 3rd floors -- in 4.5 years, 1st floor may be all administrative offices,

Scnator Grindberg: Square foot cost for renovation?

Vice President Clark: There are some asbestos problems -- 12,000 square feet ; cost per square

foot (includes equipment/furnishings) some excess of 100 dollars.

Joseph Chupman, President of North Dakota State University (NDSU) presented capital

construction bonding requests ( a copy of which is attached).

Senator Solberg: How do you rank Minard and Ceres? Equal?

President Chapman: Perhaps Minard a littie ahead --- as our enrollment grows we have a serious
olassroom space problems. Both are very important, and there is a need for
faculty/administrative space in both buildings.

Scnator Bowman: As mentioned before -- phase one of Minard? Do one phase; couldn't phases
utilize the off-scason? Complete the full project cheaper than having construction work going on
at all times?
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President Chapman: Less expensive on the economic scale but the problom would be where 10

put the number of people on a temporary basis. Single phascs case that problem,

Senator Tallackson: How serious is the asbestos problom? 2 years ago there was in“'t'ormalion

that it wasn’t so serious, now have to do it?
President Chapman: Asbestos is around piping, under the floor tiles --- if you do not disturb

them it {s okay -- it is a matter of safety for workers to remove.

Senator Tallackson: Who says you have to remove it?

President Chapman: Part of the renovation,

Senator Tallackson: EPA rule?

President Chapman: Yes

Senator Andrist: Why remove floor tile -- put new cover over the tiles?

President Chapman: Buildings are 100 years old -- floor can’t take renovations. Minard is a
heritage building -- needs to be done different way.,

R. Craig Schnell, Vice President for Academic Affairs, NDSU: presented documentation on
Minard Hall, phase I (copy attached).

Senator Bowman: Floods -- been addressed in design?

Yice President Schaell: Yes, no problems in June but now icicles melt and draining in the
garden lovel being addressed.

George Wallman, Vice President for Student Affairs, NDSU presented information regarding the
new residence hall (copy of testimony is attached),

Senator Nething: Vice Chancellor Glatt -- the 11 thousand executive recommendation -- not in
“totals?

Mhmmmcovenm Schafer did not include; Governor Hoeven is.
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Senator Nething: Didn't amend to include Governor Hoevan's --till this bill. Still in the 3
underlined?

Yice Chancellor Glatt: 4 yes, underlined are Governor Hoeven’s revised,

Senator Nething: Robinson Hall passed did it not?

Yice Chancellor Glatt: SB2003 had Robinson,

Senator Nething: Amended out of SB2003?

Yice Changellor Glatt: Yes,
John Ettling, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost, University of North Dakota

(UND) presented documentation on the O'Kelly Hall Renovation and the Memorial Student
Union Renovation (copies of both are attached).
Senator Andrist: The $7 per student, is that per semester?

Vice President Eitling: Per semester.
Senator Nething: Kelly Hall situation -- needs it -- but dollar constraints, reduces budget --

staying with them -- all the increases in higher Ed ---need some guidance as to where the dollars
could come from --- additional dollars not part of picture.

Vice President Ettling: Understand, Senator Holmberg has spoken with us already. Indicates
perhaps not this session -- but we will come again, As Senator Tomac indicated while on tour
this summer: why wait until the buildings are run down -- why don’t you tejl until it gets so bad.
Senator Heitkamp: TFee -- is this additional? Adding where -- already $384,

Yice President Eftling: This is a special assessmont by the students on themselves. The current

foe expires in 2001, this will extend it. Part time student fees are prorated
Senator Heitkamp: So this doesn’t go up?
Yice President Ettling: Yes.
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Alvin Binstock, Vice President for Business Affairs, Dickinson State Uni\)crsity (DSU)

presented testimony on the Murphy Hall Renovation and Addition at DSU ( a copy of testimony
is attached),
Senator Andrist: College/university square foovage? Renovations -- huge expansion projects?
Porhaps doubled when we provide heat/lights and future care --- is there a limit to the growth of
square footage?
Yice President Binstogk: Additional cost provides square footage and educational footage; we
are 1ot up to speed where training nceds for education, size of classrooms. Wo are utilizing
faculty; have inefficient work space -- asking them to work within confinements, We understand
the situation but feel it should be the whole approach -- will complement additional space,
Senator Tallackson: How's the oil well under the football field?
Vice President Binstock: Wish we had 3 -- production was minimized, now that production is up
we've had too revenue the last 3-4 months, The price is another matter-- we are a couple months
behind in figures there,
Joseph McCann, President of Williston State College (WSC) presented documentation on the
Diesel Technology Addition at WSC ( a copy is attachc ').
Senator Bowman: Growth at both Wahpeton (NDSCS) and WSC?
President McCann: We are 32 down this year in the diesel technology pro;ram; partly because
of the crowded facilitics. Can’t speak to NDSCS enrollment. Can say that our students in this
program are older than 20,
Sharon Etemad, President of Lake Region State College (LRSC) presented documentation on the
Science Lecture Bowl and Laboratories at LRSC ( a copy is attached).

Senator Robinson: Using the demography studies in your area? See changes?
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President Etemad: Devils Lake comrﬁunity is strong; lots of our students are local, We do sce a
drop in tho outlining areas. Using more cooperative methods (example: in the health

care/sclence fields ) using telecommunications, IVN to teach science courses, updating skills.
Michael Renk, Vice President for Administrative Affairs, North Dakota State College of Science
(NDSCS) testified on the Student Union Remodeling-Blikre Activitics Center Addition at
NDSCS. He presented documentation at tho hearing of SB2003 carlicr, but enforced the need for
the appropriations, Student Union will be completed in 2 phases, figuros as on Vice Chancellor
Glatt's spreadsheet presented earlior in this hearing,

Robert Bamnett, Interim State Health Officer, presented testimony on the Health Department’s

Facilitios Master Plan ( a copy of testimony is attached),

Senator Andrist: Rent space? If you do, rental from federal dollars? Bond facility; same ronters

- allow them to pay part with federal dollars

Robert Bamett: Yes. Yes. In my opinion,

Sheila Peterson, OMB: Indicated four parts to OMB section: 1. Division of Community
Services; 2) Industrial Commission of ND; 3) Job Service; and 4) Project for Department of
Transportation,

Wayne Kindem, Director of Administrative Services for Job Service North Dakota, presented
testimony for that unit ( a copy is attached).

Senatcr Nething: Parking? Length of time per visit?

Wayne Kindem: One hour -- but if the client is doing a resume, working on the Internet,
requiring scine self related tasks it may be beyond the hour. Some clients have a short duration.
Senator Tallackson: Pay loan off?

Wayne Kindem: Temporary leases payment incorporated in current budget.
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Senator Grindbery: Estimate square foot cost of land? How effects project?

Wayne Kindem: per land $4.50 square foot (high side); effect services leased square footage --
have 2/3 not delivered as good as should be and not the way we do -- stop separate locations,
look to being able to quality manner -- lease cost effective survey indicates it is difficult to find
over 10,000 square foot areas -- limited number and oxpensive.

Senator Bowman: Number of people who work in cubicles solely on computers? Out service
considered? Rent outside of the city of Bismarck available, Hook up with technology a
possibility? Ability to expand to rural communitics who nced businesses?

Wayne Kindem: Decentralized --- we have 19 offices, half of the staff is in Bismarck and
accossiblo. All staff use computers; use connections to the main frame ete, We look to do voice
mail, Internct to assist our clients. Some delivery of services is always going to be face to face,

Senator Andrist: Where are facilities? 6, 4 thousand square -- large facility?

Wayne Kindem: Larger office in on Divide (State Administration); customer delivery facilities

off 2nd Street down town, and a temporary location in the US Bank Building,

Kim Christianson, Energy Program Manager, ND Division of Community Services presented
testimony on State Facility Energy Improvement Project Authorizations ( a copy attuched).
Senator Grindberg: Compare what Wahpeton did -- not similar through stati?

Kim Ch:istianson: Performance contracts are campus wide; energy consumption is used at UND
and NDSU,

Randy Bohlman, UND facilities department indicated: coordinator was chosen on this -- targeted
systems not buildings; integrated resources - how they apply -- we felt primary reason we got the
improvement for the dollars.

Senator Grindberg: You made? Utility companies involved? 2 partners at NDSCS.
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Randy Bohlman: We become energy server provider,
Senator Grindberg: Similar to Science without bond?

Randy Boblman: Bond worked better for us,
Kim Christianson: Worked Wahpeton, Mayville, and Valloy City -- similar; docsn't utilize third

party -- more control, dollars in ND.

Scnator Bowman: Life time expectancy, 6 years? Changes last? Before outdated?

Kim Christianson: Lights have a longer uscful life, mechanical 20 years.

Senator Andrist: UND portion -- paid out of line item utilities? Same as Science?

Kim Christiansaii: Correct,

Karlene Fing, Exccutive Director and Secretary, Industrial Commission of North Dakota
presented neutral testimony on SB2023 ( a copy of testimony is attached),

Senator Nething: Chart: debt service column: lowest of cushion?

Katlene Fine: Correct -- 160,318 if funded.

Sengtor Nething: More dollar cushion allow?
Katlene F  Estimate of Y2 million to | million,
Senator I vlberg: MSU: their portion to be bonded , also reflected here?

Katlene Fine: Have been reflected.
Senator Solberg: We're still liable for it?

Karlene Fine: Correct.
Senator Andrist: Source of funds -- repay ment of energy projects?

Karlene Fing: With in budgets - utilities savings could provide payment,

Senator Andrist: No general funds: Other than appropriated?
‘ Karlene Fine: Yes, if general funds are what pay utilities,
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Senator Robingon: Total columns?
Karlong Fing: Debt service pay this biennium , 2001-03

Senator Robinson: If no additional projects, pay all outstanding debt:

“Karlene Fine: Yes.

Senator Nething: Asterisk to sales tax -- 4% increase each bi; revenue increase Hoeven's figures
shade under 3% -- where 47

Karlene Fine: Number used by the tax department for the biennium,

Sheila Peterson, OMB: Number Karlene Fine used does reﬂec; sales tax-motor vehicle tax;

Sales tax is down, upcoming biennium, Numbers do reflect actual - starting number.
Karlene Fine: Conservative number
Senator Nething: See sales tax 7%...3.98 motor vehicle -- appears conservative. Cushion

reduction?

Katlene Fine: Correot.
Kathy Roll, Attorney General’s Office, gave neutral testimony, If you approve SE West Bldg, --

the Attomney General's Office will be pleased to move to their space. We have 20 staff members
in & basement (many health issues involved in this space), Have 3 separate locations; staff on 3
fluors of the capitol. ...would bring divisions together.

Hearing on $B2023 closed.

Committee assignment by Senator Nething:
Senator Grindberg, Chair
Senator Thane and Senator Heitkamp




| Page t1 |
Senate Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number S$B2023

Hearing Dato Yurrmeyed Syt~
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Senator Nething reopened the hearing on SB2023,

Senator Grindberg, Chair of the Capitol Bonding Subcommitteo, presented amendmonts
(18049.0103). He went through the committee’s proposed changes, Discussion followed,
Senator Grindberg moved the adoption of amendments; seconded by Senator Heitkamp. Motion
carried verbally, Discussion on the bill,

Senator Grindberg moved a DO PASS AS AMENDED; seconded by Senator Heitkamp.

Roll Call Votes: 13 yes; | no; 0 absent and not voting,

Senator Grindberg accepted the floor assignment,
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Roll Call Vote #:

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. < 4 277 3

Senate _Appropristions Committee

D Subcommittes on

or
[_J Conference Committce

Legislative Council Amendment Number / o%‘ 6/ A %/4/2‘5

Action Taken &MLW
Motion Made By Seconded )44
14 ’//Zé /7;4

Senators No Senators Yes | No
Dave Nething, Chairrnan 4 I

Ken Solberg, Vice-Chairman
Randy A. Schobinger
Elroy N. Lindaas
Harvey Tallackson

J. Robinson
Steven W. Tomac
Joel C, Heitkamp
Tony Gri
Russell T. Thane
Ed Kringstad
Ray Holmberg
Bill Bowman
John M. Andrist

Total Yes '/ EZ

-

Absent y a7

/
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If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-29-3634

February 16, 2001 10:38 a.m. Carrier: Giindber
Inseit LC: 18049.0103 Title: .0

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
8B 2023: Appropriastions Commitiee  (Sen, Nething, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS A8 FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(13 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2023 was placed on the Sixth

order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 3, after "commisslon” Insert "and the state board of higher education”

Page 1, line 15, replace “5,076,000" with “7,850,000"
Page 1, line 22, replace "10,078,000" with "12,862,000"
Page 2, line 1, replace "$4,057,000" with *$6,656,000"

Page 2, after line 5, insert:
"Minot state university 2,599,000

Page 2, after line 23, ingert:

“SECTION 4, LOCAL RESPONSIBILITY - APPROPRIATION. There Is
approprlated from loocal or other funds, the sum of $1,300,000 to the state college of
sclence for the purpose of providing the required local match for the student union
renovation project, for the blennium beginning July 1, 2001, and ending June 30, 2003,

SECTION 5. BOND ISSUANCE - PURPOSES - APPROPRIATION. The state
board of higher education, in accordance with chapter 15-55, may Issue and sell
self-liquidating, tax-exempt bonds in an amount not exceeding $17,500,000. Bonds
issued pursuant 1o this section are not a general obligation of the state of North Dakota.
The bonds may be issued, and the proceeds are appropriated, for the blennium
beginning July 1, 2001, and ending June 30, 2003, for the purpose of financing the
following capital projects:

University of North Dakota - Memorial student union renovation $3,500,000
North Dakota state university - Residence hall construction 8,000,000
North Dakota state university - Minard hall renovation 3,000,000
North Dakota state college of science - Student union renovation 2,000,000
North Dakota state college of science - Parking lot improvements 1,000,000

Anl unexpended balance resulting from the proceeds of the bonds must be placed in a
sinking fund to be used for the retirement of the bonds."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Sumimary of Senate Action
EXECUTIVE SENATE
BUDGET CHANGES

$3.900,785 $3,500.000
$200.048 $11,000,000

0 $4.300,000
Page No. 1
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RIPORT Ol' STANDING COMMITTEE (410)
Fubruary 16, 2001 10:35 a.m,

Loss selimated income
General lund

Minot Staie University
Lots oarnaiad income
General fund

Depanment of Transporiation
Tow ahnae
General fund

B Toisd
Total s funds

Loss sstimaled Income
General fund

—g L8

5,076,000 02.774.000
42,700,000 ®
$2,302,000 $0
$352,800 $0
$14.717.739  $21,574,000

Module No: 8R-29-3834
Carrier: Grlndbornos
insert 1.C: 186049.0103 Title: .

$352,600

$36,201,733
28

Senate Bill No. 2023 - University of North Dakota - Senate Action

Capial improvements
Tola all funde

Leas eslimated Income
Gaeneral fund

FTE

EXECUTIVE SENATE
BUDGEY CHANGES
£.9900.708 $2.600,000
”i”o|768 $3|500|000

2,990,786 2,600,000
$0 $0
0.00 0.00

SENATE
VERBION

$7.490.765
$7,490,788
7.490.788
$0

0.00

Dept. 230 - University of North Dakota - Detail of Senate Changes

Capital improvements
Yol ol hunds

Loss eatimated income
Geowral hund

FTE

ADD BONDING
AUTHORITY ¥
STUDENT UNION  TOTAL sewwe
RENOVATION CHANGES
$3.500.000 $2,800,000
$3,500,000 $3,500,000
2.500.000 2.800.000
$0 0
0.00 0.00

i mmnmnmrmwmmmuwsmutmmmmwmmws«mum This project is
recommendalion but was not included in the Schaler sxecutive budget,

inciuded in the Hoeven budget

Senate Bill No. 2023 - North Dakota State University - Senate Action

EXECUTIVE SENATE
BUOGET cw"c“oes
00340 $11,000,000
m ‘1 1.0“.“
M4 11,000,000

%0 %

BENATE
VERSION

10596348
$11,290,348

11.200.348
$0




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: 8R-29-3634

February 16, 2001 10:35 a.m. Carrier; Grindber
' Insert LC: 18049.0103  Title: 0200

Dept. 238 - North Dakola State University - Detail of Senate Changes

NDING  ADD BONDING
AUTHORITY FOR  AUTHORITY FOR
AESIDENCE HALL  MINARD HALL ~ TOTAL BENATE
CONBTAUCTION 1 RENOVATION 2 CHANGES

Capital improvements £6.000,00¢0 £2.000.000 $11,000,000

Tolal il lunde $8,000,000 $3,000,000 $11,000,000

Loss sstimaled income £.000.000 2000000 11.000.000

Genersl furd 0 $0 $0

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 The board Is authorized 1o Issue revenue bonds In the amouni of $8 miliion for consiruction of a residence hall. This project Is included in the
Hoeven budge! recommandalion (In the amaunt of $11 million) but was not included In the Schaler execulive budget.

2 The board Is authorized 1o Issue revenue bonds In the amount of $3 millon for renovalion of Minard Hall, The bonds will be repaki from olher
fungs, excluding sudent fees. This project was not Included in the f3chaler or Hoeven budgel recommendations,

Senate Bill No, 2023 - State College of Science - Senate Action

EXEQUTIVE BENATE SENATE
BUDGET CHANGES VERSION

Capital Improvements oo $4,200,000 $4,300,0600
Tolal aif funds $0 $4,300,000 $4,300,000
Less estimated Income R 4,300,000 4,300,000
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept. 238 - State College of Science - Detall of Senate Changes

ADD AUTHORITY
ADD BONDING  FOR STUDENT
AUTHORITY FOF UNION TOTAL SBENATE
PARKING LOT REINOVATION 2 CHANGES

Capilat improvemants $1.000,000 $3,300,000 $4,300.000
Total il tunds $1,000,000 $3,300,000 $4,300,000
Less sstimated icome 1,000,000 2,300,000 4,300,000

General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 The board Is authorized 1o issue revenua bonds in the amount of $1 milion for parking lot improvements at the State . -+ .ge of Sclence. This
project ls inchuded in the Schaler and Hoeven budget recommendations and was included in Senate Bl No. 2003 as introduued.

2 is authorized 10 lssus revenue bonds In the amount of $2 million for the Student Union renovation project, Locdfundsfntheamunw

The board
$1.3 milion are alsc mmiher od local maich for the . This ts included in the Hoaven recommendation
wag nol inciuded in the ommwm . project rofect budget

Senai» Bilt No. 2023 - Minot State University - Sonate Action

EXECUTIVE SENATE SENATE
BUDGET CHANGES VERSION

$5.076.00 1774000 41.850.000
$5,076,000 $2,774,000 $7,850,000

£.076,000
80
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"' REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-29-3634
 Pobrumry 16,2001 10:35 e,

FTE - : 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept. 241 - Minot State University - Detail of Senate Changes

ADD BONDING
AUTHORITY TO  ADD BONDING
REDUCE LOCAL  AUTHORITY FOR
MATCH LOCALMATCH  TOTAL SENATE
REQUIREMENT  REQUIREMENT CHANGES

Capital improvements $175,000 $2,699,000 $2,774,000
Tolal ali tunds $176,000 $2,669,000 $2,774,000

Less estimaied Income 176,000 2,599,000 2,774,000

General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

The bonding authority provided to the Industrial Commission for the Minot State University Old Main
renovation project is increased by $2,774,000, from $5,076,000 to $7,850,000 for the following:

¢ Bonding authority is increased by $175,000 to reduce the local match requirement from $2,774,000
(the amount included in the Schafer executive budget) to $2,599,000. The Hoeven budget
recommandation includes $175,000 from the general fund to reduce the local match requirement

proposed In the Schatar budget.

¢ Bonding authority Is Increased by $2,599,000 to allow the portion of the project to be paid from
local sources to be Initially pald for with bonding proceeds, then repaid with local funds. The
Schafer recommendation provides bonding authority for only that portion of the project not pald
from looal funds. This change s included In the Hoeven budget recommendation.

¢ Serj\at? Bill No. 2003 as introduced included an appropriation of $2,774,000 of other funds for this
project.

Page No. 4
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2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2023
House Appropriations Committee
Q Conference Committee

Hearing Date March 19, 200!

Tape Number Side A Side B

03-19-01 tape #1 0-6243 0 - 6240

03-19-01 tape #2 0-6224 0-521

yam /
Aty KL,
Committee Clerk Signature
. .

Minutes:

The committee was called to order, and opened committee work on SB 2023,
Chairman Timm: This is the hearing for SB 2023, the capital improvements bill.

[tape 130 - 1805) Francis Schwindt ment of Heath: Had prepared written
testimony, and read from it, The department of hiealth wants an addition to the lab.

(The committee asks some questions and Francis Schwindt 2ad Bob Barnett answered

their questions),

[tape 1930 - 3901) Erik Shaar: President of Minot State University gave some opening

remarks.

Larry Eide, Minot State University: Had handout regarding Old Main, McFarland

Auditorium Renovation, He went through all the numbers and pictures in the handout,

(The committee asked questions and Larry Eide answered them),
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Hearing Date March 19, 2001

[tape 4000 - side B, 2312] Wa: indem. Director of Administrative Services for Job
Service ND: Had prepared written testimony, and read from it

(The committee asked questions and Mr. Kindem and Maren Daley, Executive Director
of Job Service answered them).

[tape side B 2312 - 3850] Darin Scherr, State Energy Engineer: Had prepared written
testimony and read from it.

(The committee asked questions and Darin Scherr, legislative counsel staff, and OMB

staff answered the questions),

~ [tape side B 3856 - 6243] Tom Freier, Department of Transportation: He had a handout

entitled Energy Conservation Measure Development Sheet. The DOT capital improvement is
replacing a lighting system that has a projected cost in energy savings of $55,212 per year, and a

payback of 6.39 years,

(The committee asked severai questions and Tom Freier, Darin Scherr and Shiela

Peterson of OMB answered).

[tape 2, 0 - 2435]) Dr, Joseph Chapinan, President NDSU: Gave some opening remarks

on the needs of the university.

Dr. George Wallman, VP, NDSU: Had written testimony regarding Residence Hall. He

mostly read from this written testimony,

(The committee asked questions and George Wallman answered).

Dr. Craig Schnell, VP_NDSU: Had written testimony regarding Minard Hall

Renovation.

He mostly read from his testimony.
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| (The committee asked questions and Craig Schnell, Sheila Peterson from OMB, and Dr.
Chapman answered).
[tape 2, 2435 - 3550] Bob Gallager, VP UND: Had written handout regarding the UND
Memorial Student Union Renovation.
(The committee asked questions and Bob Gallager answered).
[ tape 2, 3550 - 4590] Mike Renk, VP, NDSCS: Had written presentation of the parking
lot repair and student center renovation and addition,

(The committee asked questions and Mr. Renk and Sheila Peterson from OMB

answered).

[tape 2, 4590 - 6224, and side B, 0 - 521] Karlene Fine, Industrial Commission: Had

prepared written testimony and read from it. She had a prepared proposed amendment attached

to her testimony. She explained how the building authority works and the statutory limitation for

general fund debt service expenditures,

(The commiittee asked some questions, and Karlene Fine answered them),

The chairman closed the hearing on this bill,
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Minutes:

The committee was called to order, and opened committee work on SB 2023,
Rep. Wentz: Has a planned amendment to this bill that pertains to SB 2003, but also
affects this bill. That amendment is not yet ready however.

Rep, Delzer: Wants to point out that we are over the bonding limit, Somehow we have

to get under that limit, There are not many ways to do this. We have to get under the bonding

limit, and they have some way to do that with legislation or calling some projects something else.
He thinks we should take some money from some of the projects to get under the bonding limits.
Use cash to pay for it instead of bonding. Thinks Old Main in Minot is the one that affects the
bonding limit. Does not have a dollar figure to propose.

- Rep. Wentz: Thoe local match for Minot was increased by $564,000 by Gov, Schafer, and
Gov. Hoeven reduced that by $185,000. Minot had requested some different funding,
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(Discussion regarding this issue. Rep. Byerly states that Carlene Fine's testimony
addressed that issuq, and had a suggested amendment to this problem. Sheila Peterson from
OMB explained the repayment plan and payments from Minot in less years could solve the
problem in the short term.)

Rep. Wentz: The subcommittee has some amendments coming for SB 2003 that would
address this issue. She explains briefly what the amendment she is waiting for will do. That
there would be some general fund dollars that could be put toward the Minot project to reduce
the local match, and reduce the over bonding problem.

(More dliscussion regarding possibilities, and then other parts of the bill, as to why these
projects do not appear in the university budgets. Rep. Byerly asks Sheila Peterson why these
projects were not in the Governor’s recommendations. She responds that mostly it had to do

with volume of other projects already in existence and timing, More questions and discussion on

the bonding issue),

Catlene Fine. Industrial Commission: Appears to answer questions of the commitiee

regarding the capital projects and bonding limits, and the liability of the state regarding the
bonds. She states that a shifting of some cash, about $500,000 into the Minot project would

solve their problem. She explains how she arrived at this amount, generally.

The chairman closed committee work on this bitl.
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Minutes:

The committee was called to order, and opened committee work on SB 2023, capital

improvements bill,

Rep. Wald: Has had conversations with both legislators from Wahpeton, and if you look

at the project for Wahpeton, what they want now is authorization to proceed with the parking lot.

It is amortized with parking lot fees. The next project is a renovation of the student union, and
what they want is known as phase 1. They want to have the authority to start raising the local
match in the coming biennium, and not start the construction until they have a good portion of
that local match raised. We need to develop an amendment that allows the School of Science to

start raising the money as required for phase I, remodeling and reconfiguration of the existing

student unior., The state architect's comments are that his recommendation is not to do this

project at this time. The amendment would be that the School of Science would start raising the

revenue for the phase I of the student union,
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Chainman Timm: Would that also take out the $2 million figure in the bill.

Rep. Wald: So on page 3, line 7 would be deleted. Moves to adopt the amendment,

Seconded by Rep. Boehm.

Rep, Skarphol: Do we just want to allow them to start the local match, that they can’t

start the renovation or anything.

Rep. Wald: Yes.

Chairman Timm: The local match would be raising the whole $2 million, wouldn’t it?
There is no match. They were going to get guaranteeing by a bond.

Rep, Wald: If you look at the written testimony (at least from the subsection), page 14,
the student union remodeling is from $1 million local, $1 million from student fees, and $!
million from revenue,

Rep, Monson: Would the language allow them to raise their fees so they can start
working on the other pari,

Rep. Wald: The students voted on raising their fees.

Rep. Glassheim: Do we need to give them authority to bond the $2 million.

Chairman Timm: The object of the amendment is to keep them from starting on the
addition until they have the $1 million local match raised.

(The committee discussed that this effort will take some time based upon the size of the
city, the number of students, etc. They will have some time to raise this money, which will
probably be next biennium),

Rep. Gulleson: She resists the motion, stating that the community does think they can
raise that money and should be ably to begin building if they can.

Chairman Timm: Thinks the amendment allows them to go on with the renovation.
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(The committee says no, they have to first raise all the local money, then come back for
the bonding at a later date).

Rep. Skarphol: Thinks that if the school and city is determined enough to raise the
money for the match, they should be allowed to do the renovation this biennium.

Rep. Wald: Amends his motion to allow the school to begin the renovation as soon as
they raise the $1 million match.

Rep. Byerly: In the bonding bill, and Katlene Fine is here and could possibly answer
this, the $2 million in the bonding bill, is that just for phase |, or is it for the entire project that
includes the addition? We need to get straight how much that bonding is intended to cover. The
total cost is $3,332,000, and that looks like the $2 million that's in here would include with the
focal funds enough to both the renovation and addition.

Karlene Fine: Doesn’t know,

Rep. Bverly: If he reads page 13 coriectly of the handout, the total cost for the entire
thing, including the renovation and the addition is $3.2 million. The bonding is $2 million of
that for both phases. Not sure how they can break this out, He would like to decrease the
funding,

Chairman Timm: We need to do a littie more work on this.

Rep. Wald withdraws his motion, and Rep. Boehm withdraws his second.

The chairman closed the committee work on this bill,




2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2023
House Appropriations Committee

Q3 Conference Commiittee

Hearing Date Agril 10, 2001

Tape Number Side A Meter #
04-10-01 tape #2 824 - 2199

s 4
Committee Clerk Signature W( W

Minutes:

The committee was called to order, and opened committee work on SB 2023, the capital
construction bill,

Rep. Timm: Hands out proposed amendment ,0205, and explains it's purpose. There
was a lot of discussion about item 7 in section 5, regarding the student union renovation funding
in Wahpeton, The amendment says that the funding of $1.3 million must be collected and the
renovation and expansion plans approved by the state architect before the renovation and
expansion building may begin. The $1.3 million is a local match.

Rep. Martinson: Moves to adopt this amendment., Seconded by Rep. Monson,

Voice vote adopts the amendment,

Rep. Wentz: Hands out and explains amendment .0203. There also in im accompanying
- paper titled North Dakota Building Authority Debt Service dated 4/4/01. There was some

discussion and concern in this committee about the negative humber that would occur in the
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biennium 03-05, and there was talk about putting general fund dollars in the bill so we could get
away from the negative number. Carlene Fine has come up with an alternate proposal, and that
is what is contained in amendment .0203. It simply requires that Minot State University increasc
the first two payments on their share of the local match, and they would pay $310 for cach of the
first two years, 03 and 04, That would be sufficient to take care of that negative number.

Rep. Wald: Would like to ask Laura Glatt about the bonding. The bill has $2 million for
science student union and renovation. That probably will not take place this biennium, because
they have to raise that $1.3 million match. Should we remove that from the bill?

Laura Glatt: Of the $1.3 million, $300,000 is coming from auxiliary enterprises which
they already have in hand. She is not sure how far along they are with the other fund raising. If
you have just a couple big donors, that could come quickly. Her feeling would be to leave the
bonding authority there, in the event they are able to raise this money this biennium. If they are
not able to, they couldn’t start, and would have to come back to the legislature and get
reauthotization. It won’t hurt anything to leave the authorization there.

Rep. Wentz: Moves to adopt the amendment, Seconded by Rep. Martinson.

Rep. Delzer: Wants to know if they are lowering the bonding amount by that $300,000?
Page 2, line 1.

Catlene Fine: No we are not reducing the amount of the bonding. It is just the local
match portion is being shifting around so we can get around the negative number, but we are stitl
bonding for the entire amount of the project.

Voice vote adopted the amendment.

Rep. Byerly: Asks a question of Sheila Peterson. On the authorization of energy

improvement projects, when did we start doing those? In the last biennium?
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Sheila Peterson: That is correct. The enabling legislation was passed two years ago,
directing the state energy engineer to go out and do these energy audits, and reccommend any
projects to this legislative session, This is the first session these would be seen.

Rep. Delzer: Did we put anything on anywhere that would require reports on whether or
not we are actually seeing any savings?

Sheila Peterson: Would have to go back and look at last sessions’ enabling legistation.

Rep. Delzer: Do we have anything for the next session, a report that will come back, an
audit or something, that would prove that these are actually paying out like they say. A
cost/benefit analysis. Would move to amend to add that to section 3, that there be a cost/benefit
analysis to the next legislative session. Seconded by Rep. Byetly.

Rep. Aarsvold: Agrees with the intent of the motion. Doubts that in that time we can
really judge the benefit in that short petiod of time. Would suggest that down the road we would
expect periodic reports,

(Some discussion on the feasibility of these reports).

Voice vote adopted this amendment,

Rep. Wentz: Moves DO PASS AS AMENDED, Seconded by Rep. Gulleson.

Vote on Do Pass as Amended : 15 yes, 3 no, 3 absent and not voting,

Rep. Timm is assigned to carry this bill to the floor,
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Title. Representative Koppang
: April 10, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2023

Page 1, line 5, after "appropriation” insert “; to provide a statement of legislative intent"

Page 2, line 27, after "renovation" insert "and expansion”

Page 3, line 7, after "renovation” insert "and expansion”

Page 3, after line 10, insert:

*SECTION 6. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - STATE COLLEGE OF SCIENCE -
STUDENT UNION RENOVATION. ltis the intent of the legislative assembly that the
funding of $1,300,000 included in section 4 of this Act must be collected and renovation
and expansion plans approved by the state architect before the state college ot science
may begin on the renovation and expansion of the student union.”

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:
HOUSE - This amendment adds a section that requires the State College of Sclence to collect

the local match of $1.3 million for the Student Union renovation and expansion project and to
recelve project approval from the state architect before work on the project may begin.

18049.0205
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Houss _APPROPRIATIONS Committee
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D Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number oA . R OS
Action Taken qus {_amamd pandt

Motion Made By E@ MOATL/&)‘::J/\BY &@ MWSUYL

Representatives | ' Representatives

Timm - Chairman
§ Wald - Vice Chairman

Rep - Aaravold A Rep - Koppelman

A Rep - Martinson
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Rep - Skarphol
Rep - Svedjan
Rep - Thoreson
Rep - Warner
Rep - Wentz
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1'3049.6203 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Wentz
Fiscal No. 3 April 4, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2023

Page 2, line 1, replace "$6,656,000" with "$6,356,000"
Page 2, line 6, replace "2,699,000" with "2,299,000"

Page 2, afier {ine 6, insert:

"The Minot state university local responsibllity of $2,299,000 shall be pald in ten
annual payments with each of the first two annual payments being $315,000 and each
of the remaining eight annual payments being $208,625."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Blll No. 2023 - Minot State University - House Action

This amendment reduces Minot State University's local match for the renovation of Old Main by
$300,000, from $2,599,000 to $2,299,000, and provides that the local match must be rald in 10 annual
payments with each of the first two annual payments being $315,000 and each of the remaining eight
annual payments being $208,625. As a result, the amount of bonds to be Issued for the Fro]ect remains
unchanged; however, the portion of the bonds to be repald from funding from the general fund increases
by $300,000, from $5,251,000 to $5,551,000. ,

Psge No. 1 - 18048.0203
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2001 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2023
Senate Appropriations Committee
Q Conference Committee

Hearing Date April 17, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
2 X , 0.0-24.6

N\ VA,
Committee Clerk Signature/” N R W
Minutes: VL

Senator Grindberg opened the conference committee on SB 2023, Members present were

Senator Grindberg, Senator Thane and Senator Heitkamp, House membets present wete
Representative Timm, Representative Wald and Representative Huether,

Sepator Grindberg: Asked the House to explain their amendments to the bill,

Representative Timm: The building at Minot State College, the local match for the project was
reduced by $300,000 from $2.6 million to $2.3 million, this raised the amount available for the |
bonding. The amendment to Wahpeton School of Science, we added a section providing the
required local match of $1.3 million to be raised by the college and the project must be approved
by the state architect before the project was started, mainly for legislative intent. Gave handout

to committee on ND Building Authority Debt Service (attached).

Sgnaigx_ﬂghkmm: How mhch extra is this for Minot State?
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Representative Timm: It will excel the payment and the general fund bonding will add an
additional $300,000 to the bonding.

Senator Heitkamp: The School of Science project, has this been done in the past requiting up
from money and for the state architect to sign off, is this standard procedure?

Representative Timm: They didn’t have approval from the state architect.

Senator Heitkamp: Does approval have to be in place before going forward?

Senator Thane: The formal plan needs to be in place, if it is the architect is not needed.

Senator Heitkamp: Does the school have any problems with this?

Representative Timm; The idea was discussed with Representative Koppang and Senator Thane,
they both agreed it was fine.

Senator Grindberg: Don't see the need for the language in there, mainly for future projects,
Representative Timm: A lot of members did not want this project to pass, this was a
compromise from the committee,

Representative Huether: There was concern of use after completion,

Senator Thane: My knowledge of the administration, there is no intent by the college to those
their credibility with this appropriation.

Representative Wald: If you look at Section 6, would you consider putting a period after college
and striking the rest of the sentence, and don’t worry about the architect?

Senator Thane: My concern is the administration agreed to raising the money first, and this will

be hard to do compared to the larger towns, it is not easy to put this money together ahead of

time,




Page 3

Senate Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2023
Hearing Date April 17, 2001

Representative Timm: This concern was with other members considering the size of Wahpeton
to raise this money. If they can’t pay back the bonds the state would have get involved, this is a
good size addition for the school when you look at a parking lot for another $1 million.

Senator Grindberg: Does the college realize this and won’t ask at a later date to pay these
obligations with total project for the additions at $3.3 million, part renovation and addition,
Laura, $2 million is bonded and they are going to issue bonds through the increase in student
fees for the $300,000, auxiliary operations haye received $1 million from private funds. The
students supported this increase for the project and this is the major reason for all the support, the
whole project is needed,

Senator Heitkamp: Dues the current administration have everything in place to start the project?
Representative Wald: The one third match is for the entire project, | don’t know of any other
campuses that have raised this kind of money. Local match of $1 million help for $300,000 cash
flow,

Laura, there is flexibility where the $1.3 million will come from, can be from all sources,
Representative Wald: 1f they were to get another $300,000 for bonding, would they still need to
increase student fees and get from donations?

Laura, the revenue bonds are paid by the fee, the main income source, not sure about on getting

involved with the revenue bonding,

Representative Huether: You said give flexibility, where does it come from?

Laura, if you add the section of intent, non state general fund sources will have to repay.

| Representative Timm: The other amendment was to Section 3 of the bill, it requires the three

entities come back and report on these projects to see if they are cost effective for future

projects,




' Senate Appropriations Committee
- Bill/Resolution Number SB 2023
- Hearing Date April 17, 2001

Discussion continued on the language for the architect.

Representative Wald made a motion that the House recede to the House amendments and
further/adopt amendments changing Section 6, taking out the approval of the state architect.

Seconded by Representative Timm. Vote of the committee passed 6-0. Conference closed.

Tape #2, Side A, meter 24,6




Date: C/’/?’&/

Roll Call Vote #:

. 2001 CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2023

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE-Capital Projects

Legislative Council Amendment Number

E/recommends that the (SENATEHOUSE) ! (ACCEDE to) (RECEDE from)
the (Scnat@nendments or@@page(s) = 7

/32‘/ b /.3 E\.j’p

O having been unable to agree, recommends that the committec be discharged and a

new committee be appointed.

Action Taken ,2) Pﬁ’JJ A5 1477 L ’\r‘g-t‘ 0
Motion Made B Seconded By T
Senator/ ﬁ’/ Cﬂ Senatorlm /; L7

M

Senators Yes | No epesentative

Senator Grindberg Representative Timm

Senator Thane Representative Wald

Senator Heitkamp Representative Huether

tal  Yes é No__ () Absent D




REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE (420) Module No: SH-68-8762
April 17, 2001 5:03 p.m.
Insert LC: 18049.0207

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
SB 2023, as engrossed: Your conference commitiee (Sens. Grindberg, Thane, Heitkamp
and Reps. Timm, Wald, Huether) recommends that the HOUSE HECEDE from the
House amendments on SJ pages 13241325, adopt amendments as follows, and place
SB 2023 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its' amendments as printed on pages 1324 and 1325 of the
Senate Journal and pages 1432 and 1433 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate

Bill No. 2023 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 5, after "appropriation” insert ”; to provide a statement of legislative intent"
Page 2, line 1, replace "$6,656,000" with "$6,356,000"

Page 2, line 6, replace "2,599,000" with "2,299,000"

Page 2, after line 6, insert:

"The Minot state university local responsibility of $2,299,000 must be paid in ten
annual payments with each of the first two annual payments being $315,000 and each
of the remalning eight aiiiual payments being $208,625."

Page 2, line 27, after "renovation” insert "and expansion”
Page 3, line 7, after "renovation” insert "and axpansion”

Page 3, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 6. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - STATE COLLEGE OF SCIENCE -
STUDENT UNION RENOVATION AND EXPANSION. It is the intent of the
fifty-seventh legislative assembly that the state college of sclence local responsibility of
$1,300,000, as provided In saction 4 of this Act, must be collected before the state
college of sclence may begin on the renovation and expansion of the student union.

SECTION 7. STATE FACILITY ENERGY IMPROVEMENT PHOJECT -
REPORT TO THE FIFTY-EIGHTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The agencles and
institutions recelving authorization for energy Improvement projects pursuant to
section3 of this Act shall monitor the resulting energy savings and the
cost-effectiveness of the projects and shall report the results to the house and senate
appropriations committees of the fifty-eighth legislative assembly.”

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Biil No. 2023 - Summary of House Action

EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE HOUSE
BUDGET VEHSION CHANGES VERSION
University of North Dakota
I:t“d :lm funde ncome $2,000,785 $7,400,765 $0 $7,490,785
SRR g
North Stale University
mﬂw $296,048 $11,206,048 $0 $11,208,048
Less estimalad income 206.248 11,206,348 — 11,296,344

(2) DESK, (2) COMM Page No. 1 8R-60.8762




REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE (420) Module No: SR-68-8762
April 17, 2001 8:03 p.m.
insert LC: 18049.0207

General fund s 0 0

Stale CoMage o Bclonce
Toial M lunds $0 $4,300,000 $4,200,000
- 4,300.0

B

Minot Biate Universily

Tolal afl fundg $6,076,000 $7.860,000 $7.860.000
Less estimated Income 6,07 X 1.850.0
QGeneral lund

Siate Depaviment of Health
Tolal all funds

Less estimated Insome
QGeneral fund

Job 8arvice Noith Dakota
Tolal all funds $2,302,000 $2,302,000 $2,302,000

Less estimaled Income 0
Qenoral fund 28 2(5

Depariment of Transporlation
Tolal all funds $362,600 $352.600 5352.300

Less estimated Income 252.5%8 §2,§gg e
Genoral fund : ) ’

Bl Tolal
Tolal al funds $14.71 ;.733 $36,201 .793 530.29:‘;?3

Less estimaled income
General fund

Senate Bill No, 2023 - House Action

£2,700,000 $2,700,000 $2,700,000
2.qou, 2700, !

This amendment makes the following changes:

* The re%OIred local match for the Minot State University Old Main renovatlon project Is reduced by
. $300,000, from $2,699,000 to $2,299,000. The local match must be pald In 10 annual payments,

The first two payments will be $315,000 and the remaining eight payments will be $2083,626. The
amount of bonds issued for the project remains unchanged from the Senale version of $7,850,000;
however, the portion of borkis repaid from the general fund Is Increased by $300,000 to reflect the

decrease Iri local repayment responsibility.

* A section Is added prcviding that the required local match of $1.3 million for the State College of
Sclence Student Unlon renovation and expansion projact must be raised by the colleye before th.

project is started.

» A section is added providing that the Department of Trans?ortatlon. North Dakota State University,
and the University of North Dakota must report to the House and Senate Appropriations
Commitiees of the Fifty-elghth Leglslative Acsembly regarding the cost-effectiveness of the energy

improvement projects authorized in Section 3 of the bill.

Engrossed SB 2023 was placed on the Seventh ordei of business on the calendar.

SR-68-8762

{2) DESK, (2) COMM
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TESTIMONY ON SENATE BILL NO. 2023
SECTION 3. STATE FACILITY ENERGY
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AUTHORIZATIONS

Kim Christianson, Energy Program Manager
ND Division of Community Services
(701) 328-4137

Also present: Darin Scherr, State Energy Engineer

Mt, Chairman, committee members, there are three projects included under
Section 3 of Senate Bill 2023, entitled State Facility Energy Improvement Project
Authorizations. The projects involve the Department of Transportation, North
Dakota State University, and the University of North Dakota, at a total of

$4,639,733.

Our office was actively involved in the original legislation that created this
funding mechanism, and we have worked closely with the state facilities on their
proposals. My purpose today is to provide a brief background on the State Facility
Energy Improvement Program and to provide more detailed information on the
three proposa! 'ncluded in Section 3.

At the 56" legislative assembly two years ago, legislators passed Senate Bill 2312
which created an on-going funding mechanism for energy efticiency
improvements in state facilities. The bill had the strong suppon of the ND
Association of Physical Plant Administrators and passed with only one dissenting
vote. The main purpose of the bill was to reduce energy consumption and costs in
state facilities. While this made good sense '‘when the legislation was passed, it
makes even better sense today as we are faced with ever increasing energy costs!

Senate Bill 2312 created a process by which our office works with physical plant
administrators and others at state facilities to identify needed energy efficiency
improvements. The proposed improvements are analyzed through engineering
audits, which provide detailed cost estimates along with estimated energy cost
savings resulting from the projects. We then submit a list of proposed projects for
inclusion in the Governor’s biennial budget, along with a report on the process
used to identify the projects. I have included that report as an attachment.




The projects are proposed for funding through a bond issue, and our office, in
conjunction with the participating state facility, will work to assure that the energy
cost savings resulting from the improvements will be sufficient to equal or exceed
the annual debt service for the bonds. Debt service payment will be designated
from the participating facility’s utility budget. We are working closely with OMB
budget analysts and Karlene Fine from the Industrial Commission on this process,

In the two years since passage of SB 2312, we worked closely with eleven
institutions that expressed interest in the program. Five backed out due to lack of
funds or time to complete the engineering analyses, and six ended up submitting
proposals to our office. One of those six did not meet the requirements of the
program, so we ended up with five project proposals. A decision was made by
OMB that two of the proposed projects, one at the State Penitentiary for $73,040
and one at the State Office Building (Facility Management) for $27,710, were
small enough to include in those agencies’ regular appropriations bills, Even
though they’re not included in this bill, it is our intention to closely monitor the
energy savings resulting from those two projects.

We are then left with the three projects contained in the bill before you. With
permission of the Chairman, I would like to have our energy engineer, Darin
Scherr, quickly review the three remaining projects. I would be glad to answer
questions now or following his presentation,
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August 30, 2000

m North Dakota Division of Community Services
! A Divilon o the Offce of Management and Budgu

Governor Ed Schafer
Governor's Office

600 East Boulevard, 1" Floor
Bismarck, ND 58505-0001

Dear Governor Schafer;

We are excited to present thic fo ip state facility energy efficiency projects for your review,
in compliance with Sendle Bljk 2312 rhich was passed and signed by you during the last
legistative session, Whel: len) Rhese projects will significantly reduce energy
consumption and costs 'Wiidatiggenergy systems and improving working conditions for

state workers and the pu

of the proposed state facility projects, slong with more
ngs invalved and the pxo;gg § proposed. We also have
i ufiderstany wsthm heseiBrojects will be included in
Y g 'g‘ﬁjtha O ;i‘ meth'bd Q[ ?ﬁ‘)lncjng the

' ' o

Our energy engineer, Dgrin §cmhas I’QYM the'ma 'erials subu A feom ench oft s five
facili. ies involved and corcuts Wiih the estimates on costs and savings, W€ are confident that
enough energy cost savings wlll be realized to cover the debt service on bonds issued to finance

the projects.

Please contact our office if you have questions or concerns with the proposed projects. You may
reach Kim Christianson, Energy Program Manager at 328-4137 or Darin Scherr, Energy
Engineer, at 328-1022,

R Gt

na Butcher
Director

S

se
Encs.




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The State Facility Energy Improvement Program (SFEIP) was introduced and passed by the Fifty-sixth
Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota. The ultimate objective is to provide a funding
mechanism for the purchase and installation of energy improvements that result in energy and energy
dollar savings. Bnergy cost savings will be used to pay back the project costs. The program is designed
to identify potential state facility energy improvement projects and select facilities for in-depth encrgy
audits. The audits will provide information on project costs along with estimated energy savings from

implementation of those projects.

The following are the proposed projecis:

2001 STATE FACILITY ENERGY IMPROYEMENT PROGRAM
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Facllity (Bullding) Est. Cost Est. Savings Payback (Years)

Penitenti Tota) $73,040 $14,786 4.9
State Office Buildin Tota) $27,710 $3,666 7.6
Headquasters Buildin Total $352,600 $55,212 6.4

Enginvering Administration $ 8319 $ 1,208 6.9
Civil & Ind. Engineering 50,727 7,399 6.9
Architecture 12,031 2,063 5.8
Electrical Engineering 43,735 6,478 6.8
Dolve Hall/Mech. Engineeting 55,929 r 7,979 7.0
Architectural Quonset 5,476 746 73

Complex. Wide 120,131 16,477 7.3
Total $296,348 $42,350 7.0

Hughes Fine Arts Center 324,864 $45,794
Law School 320,464 51,590 6.2
Demand Side Mgmt.(Campus) 966,075 161,900 6.0
Chester Fritz Library 425,827 76,166 5.6
Gamble Hall 517,638 74,010 1.0
Facilities 34,400 4,85] 7.1
Steam Plant 36,800 13,256 2.8
Memorial Union 235,492 32,633 7.2
Upson 1 209,663 33,095 6.3
College of Nursing 240,040 34,971 6.9
Lighting (16 Bldgs) 679,522 111,867 6.]

Total $3,990,785 $640,133 6.2
Grand Total $4,740,483 $756,147 6.3

. We have also enclosed the following items for your review:

* Expanded Summary of Projects
» Certification of Projects by DCS's Energy Engineer
» Copy of Senate Bill 2312




Project Summaries

Project Engineer(s) | Kenneth ). Schwartz, P.E. (#-1869)
K. J. Schwartz Engineoring

Facllity Coordinator | Richard Frohlich
Dept. of Corrections

Reviewed by Darin M. Scherr, P.E, (#-4447)

State Energy Engineer

ND Division of Community Services
Daie August 3, 2000

Profects & Comments| Varlable Frequency Drives

Installation of 10 variable frequency drives.
2 - Chilled Water
2 - Cooling Tower
1 - Forced Draft Pan (Boiler)
| - Induced Draft Fan (Boiler)
4 - Boiler Feedwater

’ Project Cost: $73,040
Annual Savings: 14,786

Simple Paybﬁ(*k 4, 9 yrs
1 ) "":"""’ MRS Y“‘ ) p “ fl.\' s 3P * {1 ,4 ) -v»;; ""‘; J\ Q :.T'
R e Ty e e
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Project Engineer(s) | Jim Lcingang, Mastcr Elcctrlcian

Facilities Management
Facllity Coordinator | Loren Hald

Pacllities Management
Reviewed by Darin M. Scherr, P.E. (#-4447)

State Energy Engineer

ND Division of Community Services
Date August 30, 2000
Projects & Comments | Lighting upgrade and retrofit, occupancy sensors in the bathroom,

Project Cost: $27,7110
Annual Savings: $3,666
Simple Payback: 7.6 yrs




. Project Engineer(s) | Robert S. Granlund, P.E. (#-2320)

Ulteig Engineers, Inc.

Facllity Coordinator | Doug Faiman
Dept. of Transportation

Reviewed by Darin M. Scherr, P.E. (#-4447)
State Energiy Engineer
ND Div. Of Community Services

Date August 2, 2000

Projects &Comments | Lighting Upgrade

Project Cost; $352,600
Annual Savings: $55,212
Simple Payback:  6.4yrs

g Dty B R e
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Projzci Engineer(s) | Michael B, Eckhardt, P.E.
Energy Services Group

Facllity Coordinator | Mark Dahl, P.E.
. Associate Director, NDSU
Reviewed by Darin M. Scherr, P.E. (#-4447)
State Energy Engincer
ND Division of Community Services
Date August 8, 2000
Facllity Summary Total Cost: $296,348

Annual Savings: $42,350
Simple Payback: 7.0

Projects & Comments | Engineering Administration
Lighting Retrofit and Controls
Recommendations:

* T12/magnetic to T8/electronic conversion

*» LED exit lights
* Motion sensors to control lights in the copy room.

Project Cost: $8,319

: . Annual Savirgs: $1,208
Simple Payback: 6.9 yrs




Civil and Industrial Engineering

Lighting retrofit and controls, vending machine controls and pneumatic room
controls.

Recommendations:

» T12/magnetic to T8/electronic conversion
* Incandescent to flourescent (T8 and CFLs)
LED exit lights
* Motion sensors to control lights in the computer lab.
* Vending machine controls
¢ Pneumatic room controls (thermostats)

Project Cost: $50,727
Annual Savings:  $7,399
Simple Payback: 6.9 yrs

Architecture

Lighting retrofit and vending machine controls.
Recommendations:

T12/magnetic to T8/electronic conversion
» Incandescent to flourescent (T8 and CFLs)
LED exit lights
* Vending machine controls

Project Cost: $12,031
Annual Savings: $2,063
Simple Payback: 5.8 yrs

Electrical Engineering

Lighting retrofit and controls, vending machine controls and pneumatic room
controls,

Recommendations:

T12/magnetic to T8/electronic conversion

¢ Incandescent to flourescent (1'8 and CFLs)
LED exit lights |

¢ Motion sensors to control lights in the computer lab and a classroom.
Vending machine controls

* Pneumatic room controls (thermostats)

iroject Cost. $43,735
Annual Savings: $6,478
Simple Payback: 6.8 yrs




Dolve HalVMechanical Engineering

Lighting retrofit, vending machine controls and pneunatic room controls.

Recommendations:

T12/magnetic to T8/clectronic conversion
Incandescent to flourescent (T8 and CFLs)
LED exit lights

Exterior incandescent to high pressure sodium
Vending machine controls

Pneumatic room controls (thermostats)

Project Cost: $55,929
Annual Savings:  $7,979
Simple Payback: 7.0 yrs

Architectural Quonset
Lighting retrofit and vending machine controls
Recommendations:

* T12/magnetic to T8/clectronic conversion

» Incandescent to flourescent (T8 and CFLs)
LED exit lights
Exterior incandescent to high pressure sodiumn
Vending machine controls

Project Cost: $5,476
Annual Savings: $746
Simple Payback: 7.3 yrs

Complox Wide

Energy management controls, Insulation, computer and monitor operational
shutdown and high pressure steam shutdown,

Recommendations:

Energy Management Controls - Central system (backbone)

Energy Management Controls - Condensate Metering

Energy Management Controls - Electric Metering

Install new lace-on removable fiberglass fitting covers

Repair steam traps and steam system leaks

Implement computer and monitor energy saving modes

Repair electric domestic water heater and shut-down high pressure steam

Project Cost: $120,131
Annual Savings: $16,477
Simple Payback: 7.3




Project Engineer(s)

AR
Loren V., Winters, P.E, (#-1869)
Ulteig Engineers

David P. Obermiller, P.E. (#-3300)
Obermiller Nelson Engincering

Leonard S. Schaff, P.E. (#2044)
Schaff Engineering. P.C.

David McFarlane
McFarlane Sheet Metal

Fucility Coordinator

Randall S, Bohlman
UND Physical Plant

Reviewed by

Darin M, Scherr, P.E, (#-4447)
State Energy Engineer
ND Division of Community Se:vices

Date

August 29, 2000

Facility Summary

Total Cost: $3,990,785
Annual Savings: $640,133
Simple Payback: 6.2

Projects & Comments

Hughes Fine Arts Center
Mechanical, controls and lighting retrofit.
Recommendations:

* Upgrade DDC controls

* Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied seitings)

* Install variable frequency drives on supply and retum fan

* Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes
(corresponding controls)

* Toilet exhaust controls

* Lighting retrofit (T12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Project Cost: $324,864
Annual Savings: $45,794
Simple Payback: 7.1 yrs




Projects & Comments
UND Cont.

Law School (Law Building & Law Library)
Mechanical and Control Retrofit and Lighting Retrofit,

Recommendations (Law Building):

* Replace pneumalic controls with DDC controls

» Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)

» Install variable frequency drives on supply fan, return fan, and reheat
pump

* Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes
(corresponding controls)

» Tollet exhaust controls

» Lighting retrofit (T12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Recommendations (Law Library);

* Replace pneumatic controls with DDC controls

» Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)
Install varinble frequency drives on supply and return fan

» Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes
(corresponding controls)

Toilet exhaust controls

» Lighting retrofit (T12 -mugnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

-

Project Cost: $320,464
Annual Savings: $51,590
Simple Payback: 6.2 yrs

Demand Side Management

Electrical Generator Demand Side Management
Recommendations:

* Installation of generator sets.

Project Cost: $966,075
Annual Savings: $161,900
Simple Payback: 6.0 yrs

S




Projects & Comments
UND Cont.

Chester Fritz Library
Mechanical and Control Retrofit and Lighting Retrofit.

Recommendations:

* Replace pneumatic controls with DDC controls

» Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)

+ Install variable frequency drives on supply fan, return fan, and cooling
tower

¢ Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes
(corresponding controls)

¢ Toilet exhaust controls

o Lighting retrofit (T'12-magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, elc.)

Project Cost: $425,827
Annual Savings: $76,166
Simple Payback: 5.6 yrs

Gamble Hall

Mechanical and Control Retrofit and Lighting Retrofit

Recommendations:

* Replace pneumatic controls with DDC controls

* Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)

* Install variable frequency drives un supply fan, return fan, and cooling
tower

* Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes
(corresponding controls)

* Toilet exhaust controls

* Lighting retrofit (T'12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Project Cost: $517,638
Annual Savings: $74,010
Simple Payback: 7.0 yrs




Facllities
Mechanical and Control Retrofit
Recommendations:

* Upgrade DDC controls

* Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)
Install variable frequency drives on supply and retumn fan

* Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes
(comresponding controls)
Toilet exhaust controls
Lighting retrofit (T 12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Project Cost: $34,400
Annual Savings: $4,851
Simple Payback: 7.1 yrs

Steam Plant
Variable Frequency Drives
Recommendations
* Installation of variable frequency drives on boiler forced air fans

* Installation of variable frequency drives on boiler feedwater pumps and
implementation of variable flow boiler feedwater header

Project Cost:  $36,800
Annual Savings: $13,256
Simple Payback: 2.8 yrs

Memorial Union
Mechanical and Control Retrofit and Lighting Retrofit

Recommendations

* Replace pneumatic controls with DDC controls

* Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)
Install variable frequency drives on supply fan, return fan, and cooling
tower

* Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes
(cotresponding controls)
Toilet exhaust controls

» Lighting retrofit (T'12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Project Cost:  $235,49%
Annual Savings: $32,633

Simple Payback: 7.2 yrs




Projects & Comments
UND Cont.

Upson II
Mechanical and Control Retrofit and Lighting Retrofit

Recommendations

» Upgrade DDC controls
* Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)
* Install variable frequency drives on supply fan, return fan, and cooling

tower
* Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes

(corresponding controls)
* Toilet exhaust controle
* Lighting retrofit (T12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Project Cost: $209,663
Annual Savings: $33,095
Simple Payback: 6.3 yrs

College of Nursing

Mechanical and Control Retrofit and Lighting Retrofit

Recommendations

¢ Upgrade DDC controls
* Incorporate new sequence of operations (setbacks, unoccupied settings)
¢ Install variable frequency drives on supply fan, return fan, heat pumps

and cooling tower
* Replace constant volume boxes with variable air volume boxes

(corresponding controls)
* Toilet exhaust controls
* Lighting retrofit (T'12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Project Cost: $240,040

Annual Savings: $34,971

Simple Payback: 6.9 yrs

Building Lighting Retrofit (16 buildings)
Lighting Retrofit

Recommendations

* Lighting retrofit (T12 -magnetic to T8 Electronic, CFLs, etc.)

Project Cost: $679,522
Annual Savings: $111,867

Simple Payback: 6.1 yrs




NORTH DAKOTA
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY SERVICES

CERTIFICATION

1. I hereby centify that I have reviewed all the submitted projects, in accordance with section
54.44.5 of the North Dakota Century Code, and found all information t":erein to be accurate,
to the best of my professional judgement.

2. 1am a qualified Registered Professional Engineer in accordance with the standards and
criteria established in the State of North Dakota.

3. I have no conflicting financial interests relating to the audits or any energy conservation
measures considered by any of the submitted projects.

.| Engineer gnatyre
Darin M. Scherr l\/]‘
| |

Registration Number Date

‘, ND PE-4447 31 August 2000




Senate Bill 2312

Fifty-sixth Legislative Assembly, State of North Dakota, begun in the
Capitol in the City of Bismarck, on Tuesday, the fifth day of January,
one thousand nine hundred and ninety-nine

SENATE BILL NO. 2312
(Senators St. Aubyn, Holmberg, W, Stenehjem)
(Representatives Delmore, Nottestad, Poolman)

AN ACT to create and enact a new subsection to section 54-17.2-03, a new subsection 10 section
54-44.5-04, and a new section to chapter 54-44.5 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to
powers of the North Dakota building authority and the office of governmental assistance to
implement a state facility energy improvement program.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 54-17.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

Notwithstanding any other provision of aw, issue evidences of indebtedness to
implement the state facility energy improvement program under section 3 of this Act.

SECTION 2. A new subsection to section 54-44.5-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

Implement a state facility energy improvement program,

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-44.5 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

State facility energy Improvement program. By August fitteenth of each odd-numbered year,
the office shall inform all state agencies and institutions of the state facility energy improvement
program. The office shall work with interested agencies and institutions to identify potential state facility
energy improvement programs and select facilities for indepth energy andits designed to provide
information on project costs along with estimated energy savings from implementation of those
projects. The office shall notify affected wtilities to discuss the potential impact on the utility and its
customers of the proposed energy savings or conservation project. Upon completion of the energy
audit, the office, in consultation with the interested agencies or institutions, shall submit a list of
proposed projects to the governor, accompanied with the estimated cost of each project and energy
savings resulting from the projects. The office shall submit a report listing the proposed energy savings
ot conservation projects to the governor by September first of each even-numbered year, The
governor shall include the proposed energy efficiency o conservation projects in the biennial budget,
The governor shall make available to the legislative assembly a report prepared by the office on each
energy efficiency or conservation project, a description of the improvements to be financed, the
estimated cost of each project, the total cost of the program, and the proposed method of financing the
program. If the office proposes that evidences of indebtedness be issued to finance the energy
efficiency or conservation improvements, the office shall provide an assurance that energy savings
resulting from the improvements will be sufficient to equal of exceed the annval debt service of the
evidences of indebtedness, In determining whether the energy savings will be sufficient to equal or
exceed the annual debt service, the office, in consultation with the interested agencies or institutions,




may analyze state agency utility data to identify potential projects; perform detailed energy audits of
state facilities, including contracting for audits if necessary; and provide training to facility maintenance
staff to ensure that sufficient cost-savings are realized from projects to cover the debt service. The
govemor shall include in the executive budget recommendation for each state agency or institution
participating in the state facility encrgy improvement program an estimate of the annval energy cost-
savings expected for that agency, and, if needed, a projection of the debt service on program bonds that is
apportioned to that agency. The executive budget recommendation must then reduce the current level of
utility appropriations by the amount needed for debt service retirement and recommend an appropriation
of that amount to the state building authority. Any appropriation of an amount needed for debt service
retirement to the state building authorily is not subject to the limitation contained in section 54-17.2-23.




North Dakota Division of Community Services

A Division of the Office of Management and Budget
14th Ficor - Siate Capitol

$00 East Boubevard Avenue - Dept. 108

Bhwarck, ND 58505-0170

(701) 328-2094 Telephrone

(701) 328-2308 Fax

(701) 323-2404 TDD Housing sad Essployment

January 19, 2001

The Honorable Tony Grindberg
State Senator

600 East Boulevard Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58505

RE: SB 2023 - SECTION3, .

During the hearing on t;)y { gy‘ iproveinent projects contained in SB 2023, you asked a
question about why the Iy . 0f North Dakota project is not structured as a third-party
performance contract, sifhilir tothe .Mﬁru&widc program at the North Dakota State College of
Science in Wahpeton Dl thid letter will serve to better clarify our response.

As I mentioned at the tifhid; We zh 3« portive,of pmormame commcnng and have worked
with NDSCS all throyigbiolip theii process, spec b aily with physicat plant administtator, ‘Wayne
ulsq tirreniily work g With Valley Cify State University. and
St ‘of thefr pesformtisic ;édmtwncimdm ‘l'hémtebohding
mechanism established lhst segsjﬁl‘f by SB 2312 doés, however, off‘er some advantages to state

institutions and, in some cases; i§ d better fit.

For example:

. A third party performance contract by necessity contains additional costs such as audit
fees, measurement and verification costs, overhead and profit, that can be avoided
through the state bonding mechanism, This enables the institution to include a number of
additional energy improvements that might otherwise not qualify under the performance
contract 10-year payback requirement. We estimate that nearly 25 percent of UND's
proposed energy efficiency improvements would not qualify under the performance
contract guidelines,

. UND is in a relatively unique position to carry out a comprehensive energy improvement
program such as the one proposed, because they have the qualified personnel, resources,
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and experience within plant services and other campus departments. Most other state
facilities do not have similar capabilities and would therefore benefit from a third party

performance contract.

The bonding mechanism allows facilities to apply for specific, targeted improvements to
energy systems, that generally would not be attractive to performance contractors.

Most of the firms participating in performance contracting are from out of state. While
much of the work is subcontracted to local firms, the fact remains that a good portion of
the contract funding leaves the state. The bonding mechanism keeps more of the dolliars

within North Dakota.

Our goal is to reduce energy consumption and costs in state facilities, thus saving taxpayer
dollars. The bonding mechanism established by SB 2312 and now proposed for use in SB 2023
is one of several tools available to help accomplish this goal. Your support of the initial three
projects contained in SB 2023 would be greatly appreciated.

I hope this better answers your question, We would be happy to meet with you or attempt to
answer any other questions you might have. I can be reached at 328-4137 or you can contact

Darin Scherr, State Energy Engineer, at 328-1022,

Sincerely,

Kim Christianson
Energy Program Manager

pa

cc: Committee Members, Senate Appropriations
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TESTIMONY ON SENATE BILL NO. 2023
SECTION 3. STATE FACILITY ENERGY
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AUTHORIZATIONS

Darin Scherr, P.E., CEM, State Energy Engineer
ND Division of Community Services
(701) 328-4137

Also present: Ron Rauschenberger, Director

Mr. Chairman, commitice members, there are three projects included under
Section 3 of Senate Bill 2023, entitled State Facility Energy Improvement Project
Authorizations. The projects involve the Department of Transportation, North
Dakota State University, and the University of North Dakota, at a total of

$4,639,733.

‘ Our office was actively involved in the original legislation that created this

: ‘ - funding mechanism, and we have worked closely with the state facilities on their
proposals. My purpose today is to provide a brief background on the State Facility
Energy Improvement Program and to provide more detailed information on the

three proposals included in Section 3.

At the 56™ legislative assembly two years ago, legislators passed Senate Bill 2312
which created an on-going funding mechanism for energy efficiency
improvements in state facilities. The bill had the strong support of the ND
Association of Physical Plant Administrators and passed with only one dissenting
vote. The main purpose of the bill was to reduce energy consumption and costs in
state facilities. While this made good sense when the legislation was passed, it
makes even better sense today as we are faced with ever increasing energy costs!

Senate Bill 2312 created a process by which our office works with physical plant

administrators and others at state facilities to identify needed energy efficiency

improvements. The proposed improvements are analyzed through engineering

1 audits, which provide detailed cost estimates along with estimated energy cost

savings resulting from the projects. We then submit a list of proposed projects for

inclusion in the Governor's biennial budget, along with a report on the process
‘ used to identify the projects. I have included that report as an attachment,
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The projects are proposed for funding through a bond issue, and our office, in
conjunction with the participating state facility, will work to assure that the energy
cost savings resulting from the improvements will be sufficient to equal or exceed
the annual debt service for the bonds. Debt service payment will be designated
from the participating facility’s utility budget. We are working closely with OMB
budget analysts and Karlene Fine from the Industrial Commission on this process.

In the two years since passage of SB 2312, we worked closely with eleven
institutions that expressed interest in the program. Five backed out due to lack of
funds or time to complete the engineering analyses, and six ended up submitting
proposals to our office. One of those six did not meet the requirements of the
program, so we ended up with five project proposals. A decision was made by
OMB that two of the proposed projects, one at the State Penitentiary for $73,040
and one at the State Office Building (Facility Management) for $27,710, were
small enough to include in those agencies’ regular appropriations bills. Even
though they’re not included in this bill, it is our intention to closely monitor the
energy savings resulting from those two projects.

In closing, I would like to explain that all audits were performed by professional
engineers and reviewed by our office. I found all projects to be in accordance to
both the Century Code and our guidelines developed for this program. Iam
confident in all the projects. Also we have begun working on measurement and
verification for all the projects. Measurement and verification is ongoing and will
be done until all the debt is retired. Thank you.
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ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURE Date:  27-Jul-2000 = /9-O/

DEVELOPMENT SHEET ECMltemNo.  EL—1
Building: Department of Transportation
State of North Dakota

Bismarck, North Dakota
Energy Conservation Measuré

Description of existing equipment:

The existing lighing system consists of, in general, approximately 5600 2—lamp ballasts with
approximately 10800 40 watt T12 lamps in approximately 2600 light fixtures. The light fixtures used are
lensed fluorescent fixtures providing an average of 75 to 100 footcandles throughout the facility. This type
of lighting system is not recommended for areas of high cornputer utilization.

Description of energy conservation measure:

Replace the existing fluorescent lighing system with a new Indirect lighting system using electronic
ballasts and T8 lamps. Provide lighting levels from 50 to 70 footcandles as currently recommended by the
llluminating Engineeiing Society. Estimated number of new ballasts is 2100, 2, 3 and 4 lamp electronic type,
and a total of approximately 7200 T8 lamps Installed in 2000 Kghting fixtures.

Engineering Analysis:
Existing system electrical usage:
TOTAL kW X HRS/YR= KWH/YR X_$/KWH = $/YR
560,000 3120 1,747,200 $0.0495 $86,486,40

Proposed system electrical usage:
TOTAL KW X __HRS/YR = KWH/YR X_$/KWH = $/YR

202,500 3120 631,800 $0.0495 $31,274.10
Electrical Energy Savings = 1,115,400 KWH'S/ YEAR
Electrical Energy Savings = 3,806,860,200 BTU'S/ YEAR
Economic Analysis:
1. Design cost (10%): $31,000
2. Acquisition cost: $240,000
3. Installation cost: $70,000
Total Modification Cost: $341,000
Increased operation and maintanance costs: $0 per Year
Salvage (or disposal) cost: ($11,600)
Energy Cost Savings
Electrical cost savings:

Total Energy Savings = $55,212 /YEAR

Payback Period
Simple payback period:

Payback period= 6.39 VYEARS
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FACT SHEET
O'KELLY HALL RENOVATION

General Funds: $3,500,000
Proposed Restoration - Major Capital Project Priority

Renovation of O'Kelly Hall has been a capital project request and priority for UND in both the current
and next biennium.

¢ Renovalion of O'Kelly Hall will greatly reduce the University's deferred maintenance liability by |
replacing aging equipment, doors, and windows.

¢ This project will provide modern, energy-efficient space for a number of University programs
including Soclal Work. Soclal Work Is one of the University's most dynamic departments, granting
both graduate and undergraduate degrees. In addition, Social Work attracts a substantial amount of
grant funding by providing outreach services to the community, region, and state.

Relocating the Soclal Work depariment to O'Kelly Hall will greatly reduce the current congestion
created by two departments sharing the liinited space available in Gillette Hall.

¢ Renovation of O'Kelly Hall can be conducted in several phases, with the first phase completing the
critical mechanical updates.

¢ Once the first phase of renovation is complete, smaller projects can be completed on a room-by-
room basis as budgets allow. This flexibility is provided by the first phase mechanical upgrade that
provides the necessary HVAC foundation that will be sized for the entire bullding. As funding
becomes avallable, small-scale renovation projects can be completed without significant
investments In the expensive A/C and heating components that are required by building codes. As a
result, the remaining renovation plan can be completed over a number of years without affecting the

existing facility.

¢ Renovation of O'Kelly Hall will provide the University with modern Instrucliona) and research space
that will NOT increase the total maintenance area. As a bonus, maintenance and utility costs will be
reduced as modern windows, doors, and mechanical equipment are installed that require fewer
repairs and operate at a higher level of energy efficiency.

A complete program and estimate for O'Kelly Hall has been prepared that identifies the basic
program uses and estimates the total cost of renovation. This project has received a significant
planning effort that defines scope of work, floor plans, occupants, and space assignments, In
addition, O'Kelly Hall will retain its historical integrity while providing modern, efficient space.

Renovation of O'Kelly Hall is one of the first steps In rejuvenation of the campus core. A master plan

is being developed that identities the specific needs of each building in this area and provides for a
building connection system of walkways or tunnels.

UND Budget A - |
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MEMORIAL STUDENT UNION
RENOVATION DETAIL

Introduction: Renovation of the UND Memorial Union is a No. 1 priority for the University as
ranked for projects using non-appropriated funds.' The scope of this project centers on
improvements that will enhance and improve the functions of the existing space, providing
students with an inviting, friendly environment. Highlights of the planned renovation include:

e Replace all existing exterior doors and windows to reduce utility costs and enhance
the appearance of this classic structure.

e Update building mechanical and electrical systems to accommodate future
technology and improve energy efficiencies.

e Renovate and modernize the existing bathroom facilities throughout the building.

e Construct a vestibule entrance on the structure’s east side that reduces winter drafts
yet enhances the appearance of the building

e Replace and/or update wall and floor coverings.
e Replace celling systems and lighting systems.

Renovate the former Buckstore space into a variely of programming, lounge, and

®
. student services space,

¢ Renovate the existing administrative space.
¢ Renovate the Crafts Center area.

e Renovate meeting rooms to provide more flexible space using fotding walls and
versatile lighting systems,

' UND students are very supportive of this project that will use student fees as the source of
funding. As the project scope identifies a wide range of renovation goals that can ba completed
independently, this project can be easily phased as required by avallable funding or convenience to the

students.

. UND Budget A - 10A
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3-/9-0/
FACT SHEET
MEMORIAL STUDENT UNION RENOVATION

Special Funds: $3,500,000
Included In $B2023

Introduction: Renovation of the UND Memorial Union Is a No. 1 priority for the University as
ranked for projects using non-appropriated funds.! The scope of this project centers on
improvements that will enhance and improve the functions of the existing space, providing
students with an inviting, friendly environment. Highlights of the planned rencovation includs:

e Replace all existing exterlor doors and windows to reduce utility costs and enhance
the appearance of this classic structure.

o Update bullding mechanical and electrical systenis to accommodate future
technotogy and improve energy efficiencies.

¢ Renovate and modernize the existing bathroom facilities throughout the building.

o Construct a vestibule entrance on the structure's east side that reduces winter drafts
yet enhances the appearance of the buliding

¢ Replace and/or update wall and floor coverings.
¢ Replace celling systems and lighting systems.

® Renovate the formar Bookstore space into a varlety of programming, lounge, and
student services space.

® Renovate the existing administrative space.

’ e Renovate the Crafts Conter area.

¢ Renovate meeting rooms to provide more flexible space usirg folding walls and
versatile lighting systems.

Above text is consolidated version of information presented to Senate Appropriations,

' UND students are very supportive of this project that will use student fees as the source of
funding. As the project scope identifies a wide range of ranovation goals that can be completed
independently, this project can be easily phased as required by avallable funding or convenience to the

] students.
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Capital Construction Bonding
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Noxth Rakota State Univeraity

Notth Dekota State University is taking increasing responsibility for raising money for campus
growth without genera! fund appropriations. Examples of projects that have allowed us to s0
expand services include the Research and Technology Park, the College of Business
Administeation building, Sudro Hall, Robinson Hall and severa! projects that support community
and campus athletic events (FargoDome, Newman Qutdoor Field, Ellig Track and Field

Complex).

Renovations to Minard and Ceres Halls are projects we need legislative help with, These
buildings do not have the same potential for fund raising from constituencies with spevific
affinities to the buildings, but each project is important to campus growth,

Ceres Hall (built in 1910) was originally a women's dormitory. Now, as the campus grows, we
are retrofilting it to be a one-stop center for student services, Its 90-year-old windows need
replacement and asbestos is embedded in the plaster. The project will address these needs, as
well as oxtending air conditioning to second and third floors and cast and north wings; in-fill an
existing courtyard 1o add new space, elevators and exit stairs; and tuckpoint all exterior masonry.
This project will complete the renovation of Ceres Hall, Details attached.

Minard Hall js NDSU's largest classroom building and it houses many academic departments and
facuity offices, For example, Professor Richard Rathge of the Census Data Center has an office
in Minard Hall, as do some 95 other faculty and support staff members. The renovation will add
9,000+ square feet in its initial phase, replace old windows, and add fire escapes, an clevator, a
west side entrance and mechanioal additions. Details attached.

A new residence hall is needed to meet current and future student demand for on-campus
housing. Since 1995, we have had to use 105 - 346 temporary beds to accommodate our
students, This request is for a structure that will have no less than 200 beds consisting of suites,
apartments and/or single rooms, and rooms for students with disabilities, It will be built to meet
the expectations of today's students, including internet access, air conditioning, laundry facilitics
and other amenities. Details attached,

These projects are important because we are serving a growing student population. We have set
a goal of enrollment growth to 12,000 students. We are achieving this goal by several means,

We are expanding graduate student enroliment by 1,000 students, Through the retention
of in-state graduate students and by attracting out-of-state graduate students to study in
North Dakota, we expand the pool of specialized employees for North Dakota

We are increasing new freshmen and transfer students from out of state. Our
employment survey shows that a significant number of out of state students choose to
accept employment in North Dakota after graduation. For graduates who identified
Minnesota as their home state, one-quarter accepted employment in North Dakota,

We are expanding academic offerings to place-bound adult learners, This fall, for
example, our College of Business Administration arranged schedules so that a student
can earn an MBA entirely during evening and weekend classes while maintaining

full-time employment,




North Dakota State University
Janusry 18, 2001

New Residence Hail Request $6 -11,000,000

We provide this information to help you understand the reasons why we are asking for your
approval to bulld a new residence hall at NDSU, Over the years we have operated our residence
hall system in a very efflcient manner with high occupancy, and good stowardship of the
facilities. We are now faced with a situation where we have fewar beds available than other
schools our size, a need to increase our capacity to support the demand, and projection of growth,

In the late 70's and early 80's we had a similar situation which caused us to purchase the Graver
Hotel and build 3 16-plex single student apartments prior to the construction of our most recent
high rise in 1987, We were constantly in overflow then as we are now. Students do not like
overflow situations and it costs us students when we tumn single rooms into doubles, doubles ito
triples and study rooms into places that house 3-4 students. Since 1995 we have had to use 105-
346 temporary beds to accommodate our students, The demand has come from increased
retention at NDSU and more new students. We expect this to continue as we move toward
12,000 students especially an increase in graduate students, transfers and new freshmen from
outside the region. Most of today's students have not shared a room as they have grown up.

To meet the needs of these and future students, a new residence hall is needed, The needs of
future students should be met with a facility which is state-of-the-art in every way, Technology,
services and programs are to be blended together to provide these students with the best learning
environment possible including classrooms, Tk'~ new facility should meet the ever-changing
needs of the upper-class student resident as well as assist in providing a permanent bed to each
incoming freshman.

The facility size would be no less than 200 beds (approximately 47,000 sq. feet) consisting of
suites, apartments and/or single rooms and room for students with disabilities, Adequate
facilities and services would be provided to the students including: internet access, cable TV, air
conditioning, adequate laundry facilities, larger kitchen areas, fast food or short order food
capabilities, card key entry, meeting and study areas, and other enhancements designed to
provide the best available housing for the most reasonable fee.

We plan to finance this new hall through revenue bonds as we have in the past. The cost would
be spread over the entire residence hall system, We are acutely aware of not pricing ourselves
out of the market and believe we will continue to be competitive pricewise. Our room and boird
rates tend to be under other school's rates.

Our enroliment goals are aggressive and very achievable if we can add more beds in a facility
that meets the needs of today's students, This new residence hall targets upperclass and graduate
students. These are major targets for our enroliment growth. At the same time the new hall will
allow us to free-up some space for new freshmen which we need.

SAUSERSUCUMBER\Legisiature_2001 wpd




North Dakota State University
January 18, 2001

Minard Hall Renovation - Phase 1 $ 4,845,100

Minard Hall is a 78,000 square foot classroom and faculty office building construcicd in three (3)
phases beginning in 1903, 1t has been renovated a number of times over the past 97 years (o
meet the changing uses of the building. The last renovation was in the late 1960's when windows
wore replaced, an elovator added, ventilation and air conditioning added, heating and electrical
systems upgraded and space rearranged and decorated.

Minard Hall is presently the main classroom building on the campus and is located in the
University's historical district, It houses the College of Humanities and Social Sciences, and the
Psychology and Mathematics Departments of the College of Science and Mathematics,

The building exterior is structurally sound with the interior In need of complete renovation after
30 years of heavy use, To accomplish this major renovation project, the work must be done in
phases 50 as to maintain partial use of the building during the construction period. This
renovation project is to include a building addition to accommodate relocation of the Psychology
Department. (Freeing up this space in Minard Hall will provide relocation space during
construction and provide additional classroom and faculty office space.) The building addition
will provide faculty offices, research laboratories, and computer laboratories presently located in
Minard Hall. Funding for this project will be provided through state bonding.

NOTE: The State Board of Higher Education approved this project, as described above, in June
2000 and inclnded it as the No. 6 priority in the 2001-2003 capital improvement project listing.
Subsequent to that approval, the architectural firm assigned for preliminary planning for the
project has completed their assessment,

Due to this assessment, space requirements for classrooms, faculty and gencral offices and code
compliance issues, i.c., asbestos, ADA, etc. have been determined, Code compliancoe issucs will
actually result in a reduction to the total usable space in the existing building, thus requiring the
addition. The addition will also provide for classroom gpace required for existing enroliment.

Originally, the project was estimated at $9,675,000, New estimates were developed by the
architect and Phase [ was approved by the State Board of Higher Education in September 2000
for inclusion in the campus major project list. Delaying the start of the project would incrcase
construction costs and cost of short-term repairs,

The Minard Hall Renovation project would span two biennia. The request for funding the
addition, Phase 1 ($4,845,100), will be made for the 2001-2003 biennium to be followed by a
request for funding the renovation of the existing building, Phase 11 ($9,079,200), 2003-2005.

SWSERSUCUMBER\Legistature_2001. wpd
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North Dakota State University
January 18, 2001

Ceres Hall Renovation - Phase 11 $3,000,000

Built in 1910, Ceres Hall has been gradually converted from a student dormitory to
administrative offices for student services. During previous biennia, remodeling has included the
installation of an elevator, re-shingling of the roof, installation of a sprinkler system, and
renovation of the west one-half (Phase I). Although the building Is over 80 years old, it is
worthy of retention and a good investment for improvement funds.

Student service functions (Counseling, Financial Ald, Student Academic Affairs, Admissions.
Career Services, International Programs, Cooperative Education, Project Success, Multicultural
Student Services, TRIO Programs, and University Registrar) have been relocated into Ceres Hall
in an effort to consolidate student services. Strong consideration is also being given to relocation
of the University Business Office into this building to further compliment the consolidation of
services,

The project will include: asbestos abatement from third floor east and north wings; remodeling
third floor into office suites in east and north wings; air conditioning second and third floors of
east and north wings; infill of existing courtyard to provide new space and include elevator and
exit stairs; tuckpointing all exterior masonry; and rewindowing of entire building.

Completion of this phase will complete consolidation of Student Services and will complete the
renovation of Ceres Hall.

Funding for this project will be provided through state bonding with no additional operational
costs being requested, as the building will not be enlarged,
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NORTH DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY

RESIDENCE HALL $ 8,000,000

Based on the current trend of enroliment, the anticipated population at North Dakota State University
is expected to continue Increasing. This enroliment Increase, together with the increased retention of
approximately 7% of our current residents, has created the need for temporary housing each
academic year since 1084, Approximately 80-100 students are placed in temporary areas. As this
trend continues, the concern grows that students may not consider NDSU as an option due to the
consistent housing shortage.

To meet the needs of these students, a new residence hall is required. The needs of future students
must ba met with a facllity which Is siate-of-the-art in every way, Technology, services and programs
are to be blended together to provide thess students with the best learning environment possible.
This new facllity must meet the ever-changing needs of the upper-class student resident as well as
asslist in providing a permanent bed to each incoming freshman,

The facility size should be no less than 200 beds (approximately 47,000 sq. feet) consisting of suites,
apartments and/or single rooms and room for students with disabilities. Adequate facllities and
services must be provided to the students Including internet access, cable TV, air conditioning,
adequate laundry facliities, larger kitchen areas, fast food or short order food capabilities, card key
entry, meeting and study areas, and other enhancements designed to provide the best available
housing for the most reasonable fee,

Funding for this project will be provided through Self-Liquidating Bonds, Operational costs would be
incurred beginning the second year of the 2003-2006 biennium and would Include salaries for 4.6 FTE
and salaries for student/part-time employees. The FTE include 2.6 custodial positions, one hall
director, and one assistant hall director. These salaries, as well as general operating costs to run the
facility, will be pald with auxiliary funds consisting of monles obtained from rent fees. The only general
funds needed would be to cover utilities estimated at $63,450 per year,




NORTH DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY
CAPITAL PROJECTS NOT FUNDED

MINARD HALL RENOVATION - PHASE | $ 3,000,000

Minard Hall Is a 76,000 square foot classroom: and faculty office building constructed in three (3)
phases beginning In 1903, it has been renovated a number of times over the past 97 years to meet
] the changing uses of the building. The last renovation was In the late 1960's when windows were

" replaced, an elevator added, ventilation and alr conditioning added, heating and electrical systems
upgraded and space rearranged and decorated.

Minard Hall is presently the main classroom building on the campus and is located in the University's
historicai district, It houses the College of Humanities and Soclal Sclences, and the Psychology and
Mathematics Departments of the College of Sclence and Mathematios.

The bullding exterior is structurally sound with the interior In need of complete renovation after 30
years of heavy use. To accomplish this major renovation project, the work must be done in phases so
as to maintain partial use of the building during the construction period. This renovation project [s to
include a building addition to accommodate relocation of the Psychology Department. (Freeing up this
space in Minard Hall will provide relocation space during construction and provide additional
classroom and faculty office space.) The bullding addition will provide faculty offices, research
laboratories, and computer laboratories presently located in Minard Hall, Funding for this project will
be provided through revenue bonds pald fiom other funds, excluding student fees.

NOTE: The State Board of Higher Education approved this project, as described above, in June 2000

and included it as the No. 6 priority in the 2001-20(3 capital improvement project listing. Subsequent

ttg :{mt approval, the architectural firm assigned for preliminary planning for the project has completed
r assessment.

Due to this assessment, space requirements for classrooms, faculty and general offices and code
compliance Issues, i.e,, asbestos, ADA, etc. have been determined. Code compliance issues will
actually result In a reduction to the total usable space In the existing building, thus requiring the
addition. The addition will also provide for classroom space required for existing enroliment.

Originaily, the project was estimated at $9,675,000. New astimates were developed by the architect
and Phase | was approved by the State Board of Higher Education in September 2000 for inclusion in
the campus maljor project list. Delaying the start of the project would increase construction costs and

cost of short-term repairs,

The Minard Hall Renovation project would span two biennia. The request for funding the addition,
Phase | ($3,000,000), for the 2001-2003 biennium to be followed by a request for funding the
renovation of the existing bullding, Phase | ($8,079,200), 2003-2006.
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FTE Positions QGeneral Fund Other Funds Total
2001-03 Schafer Execulive Budget 266.21 $26,230,343 $7.860,000" $33,080,343

1999-2001 Legislative Appropriations 266,21 26,616,173 30,608,787 56,120,960
Increase (Decrease) 0.00 ($384.830) ($22,655,787) ($23,040,817)

2001-03 Hoeven Executive Budget 206,21 $26,405,343 $7.675000 _ $33,080,343
Hoeven Increase (Decrease) to Schafer 0.00 $175,000 ($175,000) $0

SRS B e S

* includes $5,076,000 for Okd Main renovation contalned In Senale Blll No. 2023.

'The 1999-2001 appropriation I8 based on 268.93 FTE positions. Section 6 of 1899 House Bill No. 1003 authorized the University
System to adjust FTE positions as needed. The 266.21 FTE positions shown above represent the employee positions reported to
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB).

7 The 1009-2001 appropriation amounts Include $21,245 from the general fund for the agency's share of the $1.4 million funding pool
appropriated to OMB for assisling agencies In providing the $36 per month minimum salary increases In July 1899 and July 2000,
$166,473 from the general fund for the agency's share of the $2,630,992 critical salary funding pool appropriated to the University
System to address additional salary Increases beyond legisiative appropriations for market and equity raises, and $183,722 from the
general fund for the agency's share of the $4,290,128 equity and special needs funding pool appropriated o the University System
to address equity funding Issues and special academic program needs. The 1999-2001 appropriation amounts do not include

$1,668,053 of other adjustments and 1997-99 carryover authority.

Major Schafer Recommendations Affecting Minot State University 2001-03 Budget
General Fund Other Funds
. Consolidates funding into two line ilems--operations and capital assets,

Provides funding in the capital assets line item for:

a. Old Main renovation consisting of $56,076,000 in bond proceeds $7.850,000 $7.850,000
(Senate Bill No, 2023) and $2,774,000 of local funds.

b. Extraordinary repairs of $412,850, which is a decrease of $637,616 ($637,618) ($637,616)
trom the funding provided in the 1999-2001 biennium of $1,050,466.

Removes appropriations for tuition, continuing education, and other ($13,860,871) {$13,860,871)
income.

. Removes appropriation for local funds. ($15,000,000) ($15,000,000)

. The executive recommendation does not include funding for
recommended compensation pian salary increases of three percent of
salaries the first yaar of the biennium and two percent for the second
year, Funding for institutions’ salary increases is pooled and provided
in the North Dakota University System office budget for the State Board
of Higher Education o allocate to individual institutions,

Major Hoeven Recommendations Affecting Minot State University 2001-03 Budget
Compared to the Bill as Introduced (Schafer Budget)

General Fund Other Funds

. Decreases special funds and adds funding from the general fund in the $175,000 ($175,000)
amount of $175,000 for the Old Main renovation project. . ,

Increases the amount of bond proceeds for the Okd Main renovation
project to $7,675,000 to allow the university to bond for the matching
local funds of $2,598,000.




Major Legislation Atfecting Minot State University

Senate Bill No. 2023, as discussed earlier, provides suthority (o issue bonds up to $6,076,000 for the renovation of Oid Main at Minot
a&;&: University. In addition, Section 7 of Senate Bil No. 2003 requires » minimum Jocal match of $2,774,000 for renovation of Old

Senale Bill No. 2037 provides a continuing eppropriation of higher education instilutions’ speciil revenus funds including tumon(
aliows institutions 10 carry over et the end of the biennium unspent general fund appropriations.

Senste Bill No. 2038 requires the budget reques! for the University Sysiem {0 include budget estimates for block grants for a
base-funding component and for an initiative-funding component and a budget estimate for an asset-funding component and requires
the appropriation for the University System fo include block grants to the State Board of Higher Education for a base-funding
appropriation and for an initlative-funding appropriation and an appropriation for asset-funding.

Senale Bill No, 2039 aiows the State Board of Higher Education to authorize campus Improvements and buliding maintenance
projects that are financed by donations, gifts, grants, and bequests if the cost of the improvement or maintenance s not more than
$600,000,

Senate Bill No. 2040 allows higher education instiulions to provide bonuses, cash Incentive awards, and temporary salary
adjusiments 1o employees without reporting the activity as a fiscal irregularity,
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Office of the P
January 17, 2001 ce of the President

Senator Dave Nething
North Dakota Senate

600 East Boulevard Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58505

Dear Senator Nething:
Just a brief note to explain my absence from today's hearing on SB2023,

Over a month ago we at Minot State University, in conjunction with our
McFarland Auditorium Capital Campaign, had scheduled an event acknowledging the
lead corporate donor to the project. At practically the same hour that you will be hearing
testimony on our Old Main project, we will be holding a press conference and celcbration
luncheon on campus for ING/RcliaStar, one of our newer corporate neighbors here in
Minot. Mr. Michael Dubes, President and CBO of ING/ReliaStar will be presenting a
check for $250,000 to the University in support of our current $2.5 million local match
abjective. It was determined that I should be present to officially accept this substantial
gift and to encourage a continuing relationship with this generous corporate partner,

I have asked Mr. Eide to testify on our behalf and am confident that he will do his
usual fine job representing me and the institution, As I indicated in our recent appearance
before your Senate Appropriations Commlttee, we at MSU are all part of a team, and we
are working toward a common goal: what is in the best interest of our students and the
citizens of North Dakota. Larry has all the information and since he lives the project
every day, is able to respond to any questions you and your fellow committee members

may have,

Again, 1 apologize for not being able to be with you at this critical hearing. If
there are questions that require my response my secretary will be able to get me to a
telephone with dispatch. Thank you for your understanding.

Sincerely,
H. Erik Shaar
President

Minot State University

'm WIWW "V Aw-mw W!"v! » Minot, Nunh mlmln ")8707 - (7‘)3) ﬂ")ﬂ 500 ¢ 4 [-HOO77-0750 2 FAX (701) 83716937
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June 1999 —
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December 1999 ~

September 2000 -

i

December 2000 -

January 2001 -

Minot State University
2001-03 Budget
0Old Main Renovation Project
Senate Bill 2023
January 18, 2001

Old Main fourth priority on the SBHE list — top three projects wer:
funded

Old Main first priority on SBHE capital projects priority list

Old Main first priority project recommended for preplanning funds
by Office of Management and Budget

Budget Section approved $65,000 for preplanning Old Main
Renovation Project

Preplanning report completed.
SBHE supported budget request of $5,640,000 State funding and
$2,210,000 local funding

Executive recommendation $5,076,000 of State funding and
$2,774,000 of local funding

Bxecutive recommendation (revised) $5,251,000 of State funding
and $2,599,000 of local funding

Mirot State University requests:

(A) Local funding be reduced to $2,210,000 and State funding increased to
$5,640,000 and

(B)  Approval of proposed mnendments to include local funds in State Bonding
authority and all funding sources for the project be included in $B2023.
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~ Mechanical Systems
Electrical systems
Mechanical and Electricat Space
First Floor Mechanical & Electrical (Addition)
4" Floor Mechanical (Renovation)
4" Floor Mechanical (Addition)
General Conditions @ 10%
Contractor OH&P @ 15%
Hazardous Material Abatement

Bond @ 1.5%

Total Mechanical and Electrical
Escalation Factor to 2001 (3.5%)
Escalation Factor to 2002 (3.5%)

$1,310,800.00
—131.857.61

$ 203,150.00
69,750.00

—-48.000.00
$ 32,090.00

—52,948,50
$ 100,000.00
——38.228.94

$ 90,538.88
93.707.74

Total M & E related construction costs including escalatiou factors

Acadenilc Space Renovation
Academii; Space Addition
Extericr Building Repair
Conditions @ 10%
tractor OH&P @ 15%
Hazardous Material Abatement

Bond @ 1.5%

Total Academic Space Addition aud Renovation
Escalation Faotor to 2001 (3.5%)

Escalation Factor to 2002 (3.5%)

Total Academic Space costs including escalation factors

Auditorium Space Renovation
Auditorium Space Addition
General Conditions @ 10%
Contractor OH&P @ 15%
Theatrical Equipment/Seating/FFE

Bond @ 1.5%

Total Anditorium Space Addition and Renovation
Escalation Factor to 2001 (3.5%)

Escalation Factor to 2002 (3.5%)

Total Auditerium Space costs including escalation factors

TOTAl ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS
(The following includes escalation factors to 2002)

$1,252,079.50
422,500.00

— 18.875.00
$ 17534545
—289.319.98
$ 50,000.00
—34.021.80

$ 80,574.96
——83.395.08

$ 653,430.00

—234,600.00
$ 88,803.00

—146,524.95
$ 600,000.00

—16.850.37

$ 60,907.29
—63,039.05

$ 318,157.79
—429.567.11

' OLD MAIN / McFARLAND AUDITORIUM RENOVATION
Minot State University - Minot, North Dakota

$2,042,657.61

320,900.00
85,038.50

13822894
$2,586,825.05

—.184.246.62
$2.771.071.67

$1,753,454.50
464,665.44

. 54.021.80
$2,302,141.74

—163.970.04
$2.466,111.78

$ 888,030.00
235,327.95

—.616.830.37
$1,740,208.32

.123.946.34
$1.864.154.66

$7,101,338.11

14172496
$1.842.063.87




SUMMARY REPORT
PHASE [ PREPLANNING ANALYSIS
OF

OLD MAIN / McFARLAND
AUDITORIUM RENOVATION

September 8, 2000
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Minot State University
2001-03 Budget
Old Main Renovation Project
;o Senate Bill 2023
i March 19, 2001

1999-01 Biennium — Old Main renovation fourth priority on the State Board of Higher
Education’s major capital projects priority list, Priorities 1, 2 and 3
were authorized by the Legislature.

2001-03 Biennium —
July 1999 Old Main renovation first priority on State Board of Highet
Education’s major capital projects priority list.
December 1999 —  Old Main renovation first priority project recommended by the

Office of Management and Budget for preplanning funds.

December 1999 —  Budget Section approved $65,000 from the revolving fund for
preplanning the Old Main project.

September 2000 —  Architect and engineers completed the preplanning report.
Cost to demolish and replace $16,190,000
Cost to renovate $ 7,850,000
The State Board of Higher Education authorized Minot State
University to request authorization for the project at a cost of

\ $7,850,000.
Funding Sources:
{ ‘ State Funds $ 5,640,000
3 Local Funds 2.210,000
¢ $ 7,850,000
i
: December 2000 —  Executive (Schafer) recommendation:
State Funds $ 5,076,000
" Local Funds _ 2774000
$ 7,850,000
January 2001 ~ Executive (Hoeven) recommendation:
State Funds $ 5,251,000
Local Funds 2.599,000
$ 7,850,000

February 2001 - Engrossed Senate Bill 2023:
State Funds $ 5,251,000
Local Funds -.2.599.000
$ 7,850,000
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DICKINSON STATE UNIVERSITY
2001-2003 CAPITAL BUDGET PROJECT

PROJECT: MURPHY HALL RENOVATION/ADDITION
CATEGORY: Musjor Renovation/Addition

PROJECTED COST ESTIMAIE: $6,781,155
RECOMMENDED SOURCE OF FUNDING: State General Fund

PROJECT NARRATIVE

Murphy Hall was built as a classroom facility in 1963 to serve the necds of the Division
of Natural and Mathematical Sciences. Today, 37 years later with no major upgrades,
Murphy Hall serves all of the natural sciences; Biology, Chemistry, and Physics as weil
as hosting support courses for the programs of Agriculture, Nursing and Teacher
Education. Program enroliments reflect the growing demand for agronomists, science
teachers, nurses, and med-tech personnel within North Dakota, The state’s agriculture
scctor is placing increased emphasis on scientific research and knowledge to increase
efficiency and maximize production.

Dickinson State University’s mission statement calls upon the institution to provide
educational services to the predominantly rural citizenry of the region at the bachelor of
arts and associato degree levels. A firm foundation in the liberal ants, including natural
sciences, is needed for both degrees. Morcover, the institution’s mission is to provide
support for the economic well-being and growth of North Dakota. Dickinson State
University cannot continue to fulfill its mission adequately without a modern science
facility providing for a safe and efficient learning/teaching environment.

The institution’s current enroliment of 2,012 students more than doubies the enroliment
of 912 students in 1963, The success of the institution in attracting students is creating
logistical problems as students compete for laboratory time and faculty are challenged to
increase class sizes within limited and inadequate confines. Safety issucs are of great
concem as students crowd sub-standard workstations and fume hoods. The original
HVAC systems being thirty-seven years old are no longer capable of maimtaining air
quality and balanced temperatures conducive to a teaching/lcaming environment,
Makeshift apparatuses are being utilized to address facility shortfalls while the lack of
adequate chemical/specimen storage areas and the presence of asbestos structural
materials pose definite liability threats. The Budget Committec on Government Services
had an opportunity to view Murphy Hall during their campus tour. Many 6f their
comments echoed the institution’s concems relative to safety, health, building code,
equipment, and energy conservation issues.

Dickinson State University was successful in acquiring $45,000 from the Officc of
Management and Budgets’ facility preplanning fund. The revolving fund was established
by NDCC 54-27-22 for the purpose of addressing consulting and planning fees for
proposed capital projects. Murphy Hall is structurally sound but needs immediate
attention if it is to be effective as one of the primary facilities serving our students. The
institution through the OMB funded planning process worked with the architectural firm
of Hulsing & Associates of Dickinson, ND in conjunction with a nationally recognized
consulting firm specializing in science/laboratory facilities, Research Facilitics Design
(RFD), to design an educational facility that addresses immediate needs and provides for
adequate and appropriate space in support of envisioned change.




During the programming phase of this project, it was found that the existing building of
26,592 square feet did not moet the needs of the institution. After reviewing courses that
were taught in this building, numbers of sections, past enroliments, und courses that necd
to be added to the curriculum, a program of spaco rcquirements was doveloped, The
program showed a need of an additional 32,018 squaro feet to bring the building o a tota)
of 57,384 square feet. The schematic design cost estimate relative to the proposed
facility totals $6,781,155.

Due to the presence of asbestos in the existing building the project must be phased. This
would require that construrtivn funding authority be available for two consecutivo
bienniums, Phase I would include the construction of the addition while the existing
building remains occupied. Egress from the occupied building would need to be
maintained throughout the construction of the addition. Phase Il of the project weuld
involve relocating specifically identified operations from the existing building into the
addition while the asbestos was removed and the existing structure was remodeled.

FUTURE INCREASED COSTS ASSQCIATED WITH PROJIECT APPROVAL
FTE Employees 2 2 2

Salaries & Wages $ 51,512 $ 107,708 $ 114,269
. Operating Expenses 164,054 199,049 205,853

Equipment 142,514 15,000 —13,000
Total General Fund $ 958,080 $ 381,757 $ 395,122

RN ET e [=o~ 2 et d poi—t b —2

During the 2001-2003 biennium, salaries and wages would be utilized for only the second
year in the biennium. Operating expenses reflect current pro-rata square foot costs of
current facility operations for only the second year of the 2001-2003 biennium,
Additional supply costs during the first biennium shall be incurred in support of lab start-
ups (glassware, etc.). Laboratory equipment to compliment the new facilities makes up a
large part of the first biennium’s estimated cost total. Future biennia reflect the
anticipated routine costs of doing business.




MURPHY HALL RENOVATION AND EXPANSION
DICKINSON STATE UNIVERSITY |

SCHEMATIC DESIGN COST ESTIMATE
September 21, 2000

ASBESTOS REMOVAL 106,368

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION : 3,296,405

MECHANICAL CONSTRUCTION 1,790,000
iuCTRlCAL CONSTRUCTION 835,950
ALTERNATE SOUND SYSTEM 19,600
ALTERNATE CLOCK SYSTEM 19,285
SUBTOTAL S 6,067,608

CONTINGENCY 5% 303,380
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $ 637,98

ARCHITECTURAL AND
ENGINEERING FLES
LESS 325,000 FOR SCHEMATIC DESIGN 410.167

TOTAL S 6,781,188




EMERGENCY ALERY - POTENTIALLY HAZARDOUS LEVELS OF TOXIC
FUMES BEING CIRCULATED WITHIN MURPHY HALL

On Tuesday, September 12, 2000, Dickinson State University was informed by Mr. Ed
Johnson, the consultant providing an on-site review of Murphy Hall facilitics as a part of
the Capital Project Pre-planning process, that there oxists a potentially hazardous
situation within Murphy Hall which could have associated health risks. The consultant
detected that the ventilation system was inadequately exhausting toxic fumes associnted
with a laboratory experience allowing the toxic fumes to be circulated throughout the
facility. The substance involved in this incident was formaldehyde. The material safety
data sheet referenced to identify the potential associated health hazards states that
formaldehyde is “Toxic. May cause cancer. May cause heritable genetic damage,
Toxic by Inbalation, in contact with skin, and If swallowed, causes burns. May
causc sensitization by inhalation and skin contact. Readily absorbed through skin.
Target organs: Eyes, Kidneys...”" Recognizing that this is not an isolated incident and
that the inadequacy of the HVAC systems may indeed foster a hazardous environment
throughout Murphy Hall, the institution has taken the following action:

¢ Hired Badlands Environmental Consultants, Inc. to gather samples and
perform air quality analysis within Murphy Hall to verify the presence and
levels of concentration of formaldehydo in the building's environment.

o Engaged the scrvices of Prairie Engineering to identify deficiencies within the
existing ventilation system and propose effective remedics that would
immediately address the situation.

o Notifled the North Dakota University System staff of the potentially
hazardous situation in an effort to obtain guidance relative to approaching the
situatior and ‘o inform the staff of the potential need for cmergency fiscal
resources in support of upgrading the ventilation system.

e Created a higher level of awareness in faculty and administrators associated
with the supervision of laboratory experiences of the need for them to scck
alternative approaches to their laboratory experiments which would
minimize/eliminate any potentially uncontrolled human exposure to hazardous
matcrials,

Results of the air quality tests performed by Badlands Environmental were received on
September 19. We were informed that OSHA's permissible exposure level relative to
formaldchyde is .75 parts/million, The air sample taken within the laboratory sctting
contained 1.2 parts per million {ppm), a level well over OSHA’s permissible exposure
limit for a sustained period of time. The hallway air sample recorded .16 ppm, a level
within the established OSHA limit. According to a “time weighted average” formula that
OSHA uses to determine potential health risks, the amount of exposure time to a given
toxic level becomes a crucial element. The “time weighted average” calculated in
relationship to a typical two hour laboratory experience would factor to an exposire level




of .31 ppm, well below the .75 ppm OSHA stundard. This factored level along with the
levels found in the hallways indicate that there is not an immediate health risk to the
students. The greater risk may be to faculty and staff members who spend increascd
exposure time within the facility on a regular basis. As we approach the cool weather
scasons, air quality conditions may worsen as the HVAC systems bring in less outside air
and instead recirculate moro of the inside air. Of additional concem to the institution is
that this specific incident focuses our attention on formaldehyde when there are many
other toxic chemicals stored within Murphy Hall and utilized within the laboratory

experiencos.

Prairie Engineering has also responded with a short-term fix to conditions existing on
the west side of the building where the major chemistry stockroom and biology
laboratories exist, It would consist of installing a large upblast exhaust fan on the roof
and drawing from the two floors below. A new make-up air unit would be needed to heat
the increased intake amount of fresh air, A fire detection system that would immediately
shut down the HVAC systems in the case of fire is a must. The cost associated with these
proposed modifications is estimated at $120,000,

Given the recommendation of Ed Johnson, our national consultant with Research
Facilities Design, and after considering the findings relative to the air quality tests, and
recognizing that there is a potentially greater immediate risk associated with other toxic
substances being utilized within the facility, Dickinson State University requests the
following:

o That the State Board of Higher Education allow the institution to work with
the Chancellor to identify and implement appropriate short-term measures to
address the air quality issues in Murphy Hall

o That the State Board of Higher Education authorize the Chancellor to utilize
existing Board Contingency Funds in addressing short-term remedies.

e That the State Board of Higher Education reconsider the existing prioritization
of the 2001-2003 Campus Major Capital Projects recognizing the immediate
need to address the safety hazards in Murphy Hall on a long-term U asis.

With the Legislative Council Budget Committec on Government Services and local
legislators being on campus for their Legislative Budget Tour on Tuesday, September 19,
the known elements associated with the potentially hazardous conditions within Murphy
Hall were shared with the group. Chancellor Larry Isaak was in attendance at the
meeting. State Board of Higher Education President Bill Isaacson was informed of the
findings of Badlands Environmental Consulting. In an effort to inform the University
community of the situation, a memo has been sent from President Dr. Lee A, Vickers
explaining the specifics regarding this situation assuring that any threat to the health and
safety of Dickinson State University students, faculty, or staif will be dealt with

immediately.




MURPHY HALL “SHORT TERM” AIR QUALITY IMPROVEMENT
PROGRESS

The State Board of Higher Education authorized the Chancellor to utilizc Board
Contingency Funds in an amount not to excced $150,000 to perform ginergency measures
designed to improve the air quality standards within Murphy Hall. The Institution
acquired archiicctural and engineering services to develop a process to increase the
amount of alr movement supporting the structure within the limitations of the facility.
The design called for the surface mounting of additional duct work serving the
laboratories. This additional duct work is complemented by a make-up air unit and
soveral exhaust fans, Tho presence of asbestos throughout tho facility has created several
challenges but contractors have responded in great fashion. Semcster break is scrving as
the time to bring the project together. With a completion date set for January 8, 2001, the
institution is encouraged that improved air quality standards will exist within Murphy
Hall at the start of Spring Semester.
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: Seplember 20, 2000
10: Janet Pichal, Hulsing Associotes, P.C.

PROJECT: Dickinson Siate University - Murphy Hall
Dickinson, ND
RFD Project No. 2000022-41

FROM: Edward G. Johnson

SUBJECT: DSU Murphy Hall

On September 12 representatives from Hulsing Associates, Prairie Engi i ~-ing,
Research Facilities Design and DSU reviewed existing condilions at Murphy Hall
relafive fo cuent bullding code and life safety standards. The comments below
refiect our observations. Many of the comments are general in nature and

apply o the entire building.

1. Two of four fume hoods in the Chemistry labs 109 and 110 are not
operafing. The fumehoods thnt appear to be working have questionable
afr velocifies at the sash opening. Both laboratories have a chemical
smell that indicates the air s not being exhausted adequately. Open
chemical containers are being stored in the inoperative fumehoods.
inoperative fumehoods may be giving a faise sense of chemical fume
protection.

2. The chemical sfock area 114 is venied directly into Chemistry lab 110 vio
open pariition at celling level. Chemical odor in lab 110 ks very prominent.
There s no fumehood in the chemical storage area for solvent aiid
chemicol dispensing. For ventilation the doors to all laboratories must
remain open for air o flow inio the comidors and eventually fo the
second floor return air louvers. There s no apparent exterior exhaust.

3. Soivent containers ore being stored in saveral smail unvented ciosets.

4. The building elevator does not have fire rated vestibules as require by
code.
5. The risers height of all interior bullding stairs exceeds that allowed by
| current code. The open four story star towers exceeds the two-story
code limif. Siairs leading into basement requires an exiting gate directing
. egress fo ground level exits. Code allows no storage under stairs.

IS Prth Averwe, Sulle X0

San Diego. Cotiamie Y2903-IK7
B Wi NNe

FAX: {419) 2940900
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. Page 2

6. The avioclave in the glass wash area is not properly vented. Fre alorm is
often actuated when autociave Is opened,

7. The structural celiings and portions of walls in second floor spaces appeor
fo be covered with an asbestos based acoustic material. The acoustic
maoterial s beginning to flake off ubove several doorways. It s
recommended thal this material be tested for asbestos, the filaking areas
shouid be repaired and consideration be given fo tolal removal.

8. Anatomy Laboratory 213, adjoining comidor and support laboratory
spoces have a strong odor of formaldehyde (the EPA has determined
that formaldehyde Is a carcinogenic hazard). It s recommended that this
condilion be tested for allowable contaminalion levels and remedied

immediately if necessary.

9. Greenhouse on third floor has no apparent ventilation and has no natural
light. The heat generaled by the required arlificial light source makes the
space uninhabitable due to the excessive heat generated. The space
appears to be unusable as a functioning greenhouse.

10. Stockroom 215 has a very sfrong chemical odor. There Is no direct
ventilation of this space,

1 1. Most laboratories do not have master natural gas shut off valves,

12. Temperofure control throughout the laboratories and classrooms Is poor.,
Overhedating of spcces is a reoccuming problem.

13. All return air from builiding spaces is drawn into the nearest comidor and
circulated back into laboralories and classrooms via the return air ducts
al the second floor. This condition not only compromises building air
quality but also creates a potentkilly serious fre and smoke hazard to
building occupants. If a fire occurs, all the smoke and heat will pe drawn
into the comidors, Current code requires that 100% of the ak exhausted
from laboratory spaces be ducted directly to the buliding exterior. All
iaboratory spoces must be maintained at a negative pressure relative to

non-aboratory areas.

14. The wasle drainpipes in many islond sinks are no properly vented. This
can cause traps to siphon allowing sewer and acid fumes o enter the
laboratories.

15. Building plumbing fixtures do not meet ADA requirements.

16. Generally there Is a distinct chemical odor throughout the bullding. This
suggests that the qudlity of ar in Murphy Hall may be a serious heaith
hazard to students, faculty and visitors. it is recommend that the air
quality be immaediately tested for contamination.

b, . Copy: RH/RFD

10




Address the life, health, and safety concems reluting to the presence of asbastos
within the facility, the inadequacy of HVAC systems and fume hoods to deal with the
ventilation of toxic fumes, a fire alarm and supression system that needs upgrading to
meet current codes, and infrastructure that does not lend itself 1o proper disposal of

hazardous chemical waste.

Improve upon the energy officiency of the existing structure by replacing an extensive
amount of glass windows and providing appropriate vestibules, The replacement of

the HVAC systems is essential if this facility is to become more energy efficient and

 provide for a proper leaming environment.

Provide the infrastructure that will compliment the infusion of technology and
research into the teaching/learning environment.

Provide proper facilities that are designed to meet the institution’s enroliment and
program needs in accordance with established national standards,

Provide for a facility that will ensble the institution to effectively compete nationally

in the delivery of quality educational programs within a safe and conducive leamning
environment as encouraged with/n the “Roundtable Report.”

11
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BISMARCK STATE COLLEGE
Schafer Hall Renovation

ey

Presented to
The S7th Legislative Assembly




Schafer Hall was constructed in 1961 as a multipurpose structure. It was the first
building on campus. As originally designed, it was all-inclusive, housing the
administrative offices, classrooms, laboratories, library, cafeteria, bookstore,
theater, and shower facilities for physical education.

It was designed to serve a student population of 600. Built with the least expensive
materials possible, Schafer Hall was less than adequate from the first day it
opened. The facility has undergone dozens of stop-gap, piecemeal renovations.
The old library has become computer labs and the information services area. The
old kitchen has become admissions/registrar offices. Walls have been torn down
and added. The single pane window walls have been replaced with new exterior
walls to save energy. In 1991 an elevator was added to provide access for the
handicapped. During the summer of 1994, an air conditioning system was

installed in the building

The 1997 Legislature provided a $965,000 appropriation for the first phase of
Schafer Hall renovation. These funds enabled the college to convert old
laboratories to usable classroom space and to remove central stairs which did not
meet fire codes. The 1999 legislature provided funds for completion of the 2™ and
3" floor hallways and a music center addition which was part of the Schafer Hall

renovation master plan.

Since the college first began planning for a Science Center, it has been the intent
that Schafer Hall would be renovated to become the college’s liberal arts center.
This aging structure can be renovated to contain adequate learning spaces for the

study of humanities and social sciences.

The proposed design for the instructional area includes the use of portable walls
and tiering to allow for dual use of classroom areas. The walls can be moved to
accommodate larger class sizes or special guest lecturers. This is especially
important as various disciplines with varying class sizes will be utilizing the
classroom space. The design also includes faculty offices and student study areas.

The remaining renovation would include the west side of the 2™ and 3" floos.
Asbestos ceiling and floor materials are located in the non-renovated areas of the

facility and must be removed.

Our original request for Schafer Hall renovation included the renovation of 1* floor
to provide an improved administrative and student service area for students.




Included in our master plan has been the renovation of Werner Hall to an
administrative support facility. Proceeding with this project is becoming more
likely each biennium and we feel it’s in the best interest of BSC and the State to
delay 1* floor renovation of Schafer Hall until the likelihood of a Werner Hall
renovation is better understood. In the event Werner Hall is converted to an
administrative building, 1* floor of Schafer would be renovated to fit an

instructional environment.

The executive recommendation deleted funding for the renovation of the west side
of the 2™ and 3" floors which consists of approximately 12,000 sq. ft. the
requested budget amount was $1,394,500. This project is ranked second on the
Board of Higher Education priority list for capital projects. Parts of the Schafer
Hall renovation master plan have been previousty funded. Phase I included
renovation of the science laboratory areas in Schafer Hall. Last session we
received funding for the Leach Music Center addition and for the hallways on the

2" and 3" floors.

This funding would provide:
" 5 new classrooms

10 new facuity offices
administrative office complex
adjunct instructor offices
asbestos abatement
ADA compliance
lab area

The cost estimate is as follows:

Asbestos abatement $288,500
General construction 439,000
Mechanical construction - 157,000
Electrical construction 183,000
Contingency 107,500
Equipment/Furnishings 131,000

AE Fees 88,500
$1,394,500

If funds are not available for both floors, the architect has indicated that the
individual floor cost would be 50%.
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BISMARCK-MANDAN

February 8, 2001

Hon. Dave Nething, State Senator
Chairman, Appropriations Committee
600 E. Boulevard

Bismarck, ND 58505-0360

Re: SUPPORT for BSC Schafer Hali

Dear Sen. Nething,

The Bismarck-Mandan Chamber of Commerce, which represents more than 1000 businesses,
urges you to fund the proposed improvements for Schafer Hall at Bismarck State College.

The BSC Schafer Hail $1.4 million improvement project will include the following:
e Asbestos abatement and ADA compliance.
o Construction of 5 new classrooms and 10 new faculty offices, 8 smaller offices for
adjunct instructors, and a lab area for criminal justice and psychology-related classes,

The Chamber feels this project is needed and necessary for the following reasons:
o Schaler Hall is currently unfinished.

1 Improvements made as a result of your efforts in the 1997 Legislative Session
improved the east side of the building. The west side of the building remains
unfinished.

"The classrooms built will be better equipped to handle new technologies and today’s
teaching methods.
The new classrooms, offices and lab will maintain the vitality and prolong the life of
Schafer Hall.
Schafer Hall is part of a growing campus. Enrollment has increased 23% in the past 5
years,
With night and summer classes, BSC classrooms are heavily utilized. This is
supported in the fact that the amount of square footage per-student at BSC is

- approximately half of the North Dakota University system campus average.
The improvement project is ranked 2™ on the State Board of Higher Education priority

list.

Sen, Nething, it is for these reasons that we STRONGLY SUPPORT funding for
improvements to BSC SCHAFER HALL, and we respectfully ask you to do the same.

Slncerely.

Dave Mwlv% ident

cc: Senate Appmprhdons Committee




House Appropriations
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HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE

Mike Timm - Committee Chairman
Francis J. Wald - Committee Vice Chairman

Education and Environment Division:
Janct Wentz, Chair
James Boehm, Vice Chair

House Appropriations Committee (
Local Legislators "

Local Legislators
District 28
Sen. Russell Thane, Wahpeton
Rep. Bruce Eckre, Wahpeton
Rep. Myron Koppang, Watipeton

District 26

Ole Aarsvold Sen. Jerome "Jerry" Kelsh, Fullerton
Pam Gulleson Rep. Pam Gulleson, Rutland
Bob Martinson Rep. Michael Brandenburg, Edgeley
David Monson
; Francis J. Wald District 27
: Government Operations Division Sen. Joel Heitkamp, Hankinson
; Rex R, Byerly - Chairman Rep. Howard Grumbo, Lidgerwood
§ Ron Carlisle - Vice Chairman Rep. Robert Huether, Lisbon
‘ Eliot Glassheim
: Robert Huether
; Kim Koppelman
Bob Skarphol
Blair Thoreson )
Human Resources Division:
K.en Svedjan - Chairman
Jeff Delzer « Vice Chairman
Keith Kempenich
" James Kerzman
Amy N. Kliniske
| John M. Wamer
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Parking Lot #2 is NDSCS’s (
main parking lot and is
located in the center of the

campus

Lot #2 1s 40 years old the
average life expectancy for
asphalt paving is 20 years.

(
® The funding of this project
would be from a bond that
would be funded with parking

fees.

The following is a cost
estimate of that project.




COST ESTIMATE

Lightowler Johnson Associates
Parking Lot Study

NDSCS >”
Wahpeton, ND >
Preliminary Cost Estimate

Project;

Date:

12/5/00

Project Number:

00102

No. of Unit_s._ Unit Measure| Cost piy_nit

Total Cost

tem of Work
Mobilization 1

15,000.00

15,000.00

Demolition of Existing Light Poles 1

5,000.00

5,000.00

Demo C&G 3600

2.50

9,000.00

Demo Sidewalk 5000

1.50

7,500.00

Common Excavation 5500

3.50

19,250.00

Asphait Demo 26500

4,50

128,250.00

Soil Cement Removal 4900

5.00

24,500.00

New Sidewalk 5000

4.00

20,000.00

New C&G 3600

15.00

54,000.00

Pit Run 5000

10.00

50,000.00

Cl-13 Grawe! (6") 9000

12.00

108,000.00

Asphalt (4") 28500

11.00

313,500.00

Striping/Handicapped Signage 1

3,000.00

3,000.00

New Lighi Poles 6 .
Electrical Wiring 1000 I

3,500.00

21,000.00

3.50

3,500.00

New 30" Inlet 4

1,000.00

4,000.00

12" HDPE 560

25.00

14,000.00

24" HDPE 330

45.00

14,860.00

1,800.00

1,800.00

Landscaping 1

SUB TOTAL

816,150.00

Contingency 7.5%

61,211.25

Engineering 10%

81,615.00

Legal 1.5%

12,242.25

Financial Administration 2%

16,323.00

987,541.50

‘ Lightow!ler
Johnson Assoc.




ENGINEER'S REPORT AND FINDINGS OF NEED

| MNature & Scope

This project is for parking lot improvements for the North Dakota State College of

Science in Wahpeton, ND. The improvements consist of demolishing and replacing the
existing asphalt parking lot, ligi ting, and some sidewalk and cwb & gutter between 4%

and 7 Street,

Eurpose

The purpose of this project is to replace the patking fot that has been in place for
30 to 80 years. The existing asphak has severe alligator cracking due in part to the
elernents of weather, poor surface drainage, and time. The new improvements 4l also
consist of storm sewer o alleviate the parking lot ponding that aurently occurs.
Adequate drainage of the parking lot witl mitigate the destructive aclion of freeze thaw
that is occurring.

The improvernents will alsu Include the removal and replacement of parking lot lighting
to address safety concems that the campus may havs,

Feasibility
The estimated cost of the project will be as follows:

. Estimated Construction Cost; 816,160.00

Conlingency (7.6%) 81,211.26
Engineering (10%) 81,613.00
Legal (1.5%) 12,242,256
Financial Administration (2%) 16,323.00

Total Eslimated Cost: A mma\  §967,541.50
We bellave this project to be cost effective. [

Projest Englneer

emrdtal Estimated Cost:
$987,541.50
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NORTH DAKOTA
STATE COLLEGE OF SCIENCE

NMute hler

SNTRUNTIN

SCOPE OF WORK
REPORT

STUDENT CENTER
ADDITION AND
REMODELING

December 21, 2000




The Student Center Addition and Remodeling
Project at North Dakota State College of
Science includes two phases.

Phase 1 will include comprehensive remodeling of the
existing facility. The existing building was constructed
in 1960 with the south portion being completed in 1967,
The building has stayed in the same basic functional
configuration since it was constructed. New functional
requirements and student needs are driving the interior
remodeling portion of the project.

*New finishes throughout the building.

*New functional requirements and program needs
requiring reconfiguration.

oLife Safety and ADA modifications.

*Mechziical and electrical system upgrades.

Phase 2 will include multi-purpose / ballroom
addition.Space is currently needed for student
gatherings, dances, etc. The old Bute Gymnasium was
used for this purpose until it was remodeled into the
Mayme Green Allied Health Center in 1999. The new
space will include the following:

*Space for 1,000 (max) standing occupants.
«Configured to allow banquet style seating for 300.
*Flexible meeting space divisible into two large
rooms.

*Service corridor allows independent use.




Phase 1
Remodeled / Reconfigured Spaces

Game Room

Computer Lab

Study Lounge

Bookstore Expansion / Remodeling

Basement Remodeling

Life Safety Modifications

ADA Modifications

22,300 SF @ $70.00 / SF

Elevator
Mechanical / Electrical Upgrades
SUBTOTAL
A/E Fees (est.)
TOTAL PHASE 1
Phase 2

Multi-Purpose / Ballroom Addition
A/E Fees (est.)
TOTAL PHASE 2

TOTAL EST. COST

$1,561,000

$ 60,000
$ 350,000

$1,971,000
$ 135,000

$2,106,000

$1,147,000
$ 80,000
$1,226,000

$3,332,000




Bonding - Student Fees $2,000,000
Foundation $1,000,000
Auxiliary Enterprises $300,000
Total $3,300,000

On May 4, 2000 the Student Senate took a vote to poll
the students body on their feelings about raising the
Student Activity Fee, The voter turn out was 258
students. 95% of the students (245) were in favor of
the fee and 5% of the students (13) were opposed to an
increase.

This project would not be started until the
Foundation has raised the $1,000,000

Student activity fees will not be increased for this
project until the Foundation has met its goal.

The Union is over thirty years old. The building
has a traffic flow of over four thousand people

daily.

[t is simply worn out and nceds new interior along
with a new mecchanical system.

(
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Floor Plan / Southwest View
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Schedule 5

DIESEL TECHNOLOGY ADDITION $524,616

The Willision State College Strategic Plan includes a goal of obtaining NATEF certification for the Diesel
Technology Program. NATEF certification is a nationally recognized certification for auto and diesel
technology education training programs. According to NATEF certification criteria, the lab space needs to
provide at least 400 square feet per student for the envivonment to be safe and conducive for learning.

These space requirements do not include classroom space.

Over the years, demand for training in the diesel technology area has grown. To meet the increased
demand, o Diesel Technology Instructor was added to the program starting in the 97-98 academic year
increasing the number of instructors to three. Student enrollinent in this program was then increased to 48,
Over the past 8 years, the Diesel Technology Program enrvllment hes been at the maximum number of

students allowable per instructor.

Following NATEF cettification requirements, the minimum lab space for the current 48 students should
total 19,200 square fest. The current lab space of 9,600 square feet is well below the minimum standard.
An additional 12,000 square feet is required for this program to meet NATEF cettification for current
etvollment levels, An additional 6,000 square faet for a total addition of 18,000 would allow for growth in
the future - but most importantly - it would provide 2 safe envirnnment for the studsuts and faculty in this

program,

The pieces of equipment and mock units used in this program require considerable space. A recent incident
in thig area has caused concern over the cramped environment. The 1999-01 budget inzludes funding for
additional building rental ($15,000) for this program. Options are being considered for a temporary
solution with plang for a building addition to meet the campus's iorg-term goals.

The addition for the Diesel Technology Program is planned for i'ys Crighton Building, which houses the
current Diesel Program, Williston State College's Health and "We') ,ess Center Addition that is planned for
construction in the 1999.01biennium includes space for the Nursir, ¢ and Physical Therapy Assistant
Programs that are currently housed in the Crighton Building as weil. Rrallocation of this space to the
Diesel Program for lab space ig not feasible. Lab space requires v+« heiy bt greater than the existing space
where the Nursing and Physical Therap Assistant Programs are locaied. The addition is planned for the
east sectlon of the Crighton Building where the wall heighi is appropriate for lab space.

Funding considerations:

* Project to mest health and safety requirements.

* Addition to existing facilities.

* Reallocation of existing space {s not an option.

* Project is consistent with the campus physical development as shown In the Master Plan,

* The addi‘lonal space requirements have been and continue to be a part of our strategle planning process

that {s cor 1stent with Williston State College's mission,
* The Master Plun was developed hand-in-hand with the strategic planning process and includes campus

wide participation,
* Comuunity input is sought through the Diesel Progran's advisory board and additional lab space has

been considered a top priority for this group,

* A quality diesel program is consistent with the mission of the college.

* Additional space will be used for academic purposes.

* Additional space will allow for safe use of the existing squipment and for expansion of equipment and

technology requirements for the future,
* Additional costs for utilities and maintenance should be covered through reallocation of the $15,000

currently in the budget for building rental,

* Custodial/maintenance salavies for additional space are not required, The cleaning of the lab space is part
of the Diesel Technology Program where the students and Instructional staff maintain the Inb atea, The
physical plant staff as part of their regular duties will handle larger malntenance requirements. A new
custodial position was added to the physical plant function in 2000-01 budget from reallocation,
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A. Prujects Requiring Legislative Authority-Major Re-modeling/Additions and New Construction

2001-03 Biennlum

¢ Science Lecture Bowl and Laboratories: Science facilities at Lake Region State College have

remained essentially the same since the college was constructed in 1966, Only minor upgrades of
equipment have been made to support teaching steategies in the sclence classrcoms/laboratories,
Large lecture classes are held in the auditorium which is in heavy demand for other uses. From
time to time the lecture scheduled in the auditorium must be re-located to the dining room, the
only other space on campus which can accommodate these large clasces. The dining room is a
poor substitute for a classroom because of the noise, the lack of instructional support equipment,
and the limitations on its availability due to the food service schedule. Lake Fiegion State College
has identified the need to develop a plan for the construction of a science lecture bowl and the
renovation of the laboratory and classroom space for its science programs, including chemistry,
biology, physics, and math, Square footage new = 5,100 and square footage re-modeled = 1,500.

ST T Source of Funding

Budget i~ . state- " |° NonHState
Physical Facllity 784,472
Personnel 46,720
Operating 6,222




INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF NORTH DAKOTA

John Hoeven Wayne Stenshjem Roger Johnson
Gavernor Attorney Qeneral Commissioner of Agrioufture

Testimony on Senate Bill No, 2023
by Karlene Fine
Executive Director & Secretary
industrial Commissgion of North Dakota
January 18, 2001 - Senate Appropriations Committee

Mr. Chairman and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my name s
Karlene Fine and | am Executive Director and Secretary for the Industrial Commission.
The Industrial Commission by statute is also the North Dakota Building Authority. |, along
with Rod Backman, Director of the Office of Management and Budget, serve as the
Authorized Officers for the Authority. | am appearing today to provide information on how
the Building Authority works and on the statutory limitation for General Fund debt service

expenditures.
Tha North Dakota Building Authority was established by the 1985 Legislative Assembly

to provide the Legislature with another option as it considers how to pay the costs of
projects declared bv the Legislature to be in the public interest. This Is how it works.

(1) The Legislature determines whether a project is in the public interest of the State
and passes legislation authorlzing the specific projects and authorizing the Building
Authority to issua svidences of indebtedness (geiierally these are tax exempt lease
revenue bonds payable from biennial appropriations).

(2) The Building Authority, working with the appropriate agencies, issues its bonds to
acquire furds for the autt.orized projects. The agencies convey title to the facilities
to the Bullding Authority and the Authority In turn leases the facilities back to the
agencies. |

(3) The state or agency repays the bonds from the rent paid under leases. The ieases
run from the North Dakota Building Authority to the various state agencies utilizing
the projects. The lease agreements are renewed every two years with rental funds
provided from a legislative appropriatiofi in each biennium.

Karlens K. Fine, Executive Diractor and Secratary
Stata Capitol, 10th Fioor - 600 E Boulavard Ave Dept 406 - Bismarck, ND 68606-0840
E-Mall: kfine@statv.nd.us
Pnone: (701) 428-3722 FAX: 1701) 328-2820
"Your Gatsway to North Dakota®: disgovernd.com




Testimony on Senate Bill 2023
. Page 2
January 18, 2001

(4) As part of the transaction and to provide additional security to the bond purchasers
that the state will repay the debt, the Building Authority has generally In the past
taken title to the authorized projects. The titles for those particular projects are then
held as security for the bondholders. Currently the Authority holds title to portions of
the State Penitentiary, State Hospital, Developmental Center in Grafton, Youth
Correctional Center, portions of the University campuses, etc. (The Senate just
recently passed Senate Bill 2165 that will allow the Authority to eliminate the
necessity of taking title on the property. Because of the acceptance by the rating
agencles of “appropriation debt," we ro longer need to provide the additional
seourity of a title o a property.)

The Legisiature has established a “celling” of General Fund dollars the State can
expend for Building Authority debt service. That “celling” Is currently 10% of $.01 of the
sales use and motor vehicle taxes. Attached to my testimony is a debt service schedule
for all the current outstanding Building Authority bond issues along with the proposed debt

‘ service schedule for the Williston State College project scheduled to be sold this Spring
and those projects proposed in Senate Bill 2023,

The “ceiling” is shown on the debt service chart in the next to last column. | have used
the most recent forecast for sales use and motor vehicle taxes incorne that is in Governor
Hoeven's budget. The third to last column is the proposed General Fund needs for future
biennia. You can ses that the General Fund debt service dollars needed for the projects In
SB 2023 are under the “ceiling”. The last column shows the difference between the
estimated General Fund debt service and the forecasted General Fund debt service
limitation.

Please note that under the column headed 2001B, lease (bond) payments do not begin
until the 2003-2005 biennium. For the purpose of this chart | have estimated the interest
rate on the bonds sold urder column 2001B at a rate of 5.1%. If this bill is passed, and
signed into law, the Authority would issue its bonds within the next 6 to 9 months, if we can
obtain a favorable rate and depending on when the funds are needed for construction.

| do want to clarify that the State Facllity Energy Improvement Projects are, by law, not
included under the “ceiling” since those debt service expenditures will be coming from

. energy savings. Thank you for the opportunity to present testimony on Senate Bill 2023.
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INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF NORTH DAKOTA

John Hoeven
Governor

Wayne Stenehjem
Attorney General

floger Johnaon
Commissioner of Agrioulture

Testimony on Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2023
by Karlene Fine
Executive Director & Secretary
Industrial Commisslon of North Dakota
March 19, 2001 - House Appropriations Committes

Mr. Chairman and members of the House Appropriations Committee, my name is
Karlene Fine and | am Executive Director and Secretary for the Industrial Commission.
The Industrial Commission by statute Is also the North Dakota Building Authority. |, along
with Rod Backman, Director of the Office of Management and Budget, serve as the
Authorized Officars for the Authority. | am appearing today to provide information on how
the Building Authority works and on the statutory limitation for General Fund debt service
expenditures.

The North Dakota Building Authority was established by the 1985 Legislative Assembly
to provide the Legislature with another option as It considers how to pay the costs of
projects declared by the Legislature to be In the public interest. This is how it works;

(1) The Legislature determines whether a project Is in the public interest of the State
and passes legislation authorizing the specific projects and authorizing the Bullding
Authority to issue evidences of Indebtedness (generally these are tax exempt lease
revenue bonds payable from biennial appropriations).

(2) The Building Authority, working with the appropriate agencies, issues its bonds to
acquire funds for thie authorized projects. In the past the agencies conveyed a title
to the facilities to the Building Authority and the Authority in turn leases the facilities
back to the agencies. (On the future that process may be slightly changed with the
passage of Senate Bill 2185.)

(3) The state or agency repays the bonds from the rent paid under leases. The leases
run from the North Dakota Building Authority to the varlous state agencies utilizing
the projects. The lease agreements are renewed every two years with rental funds
provided from a legislative appropriation in each biennium.

Karlena K. Fine, Executive Director and Secretary
State Capitol, 10th Floor - 600 E Boulevard Ave Dept 405 - Bismarck, ND 68605-0840
E-Mali: kfine@state.nd.us
Phone: (701) 328-3722 FAX: {701) 328-2820
“Yow Gateway to North Dakota”: discovernd.com




Testimony un Engrossed Senate &l 2023
Page 2
March 18, 2001

The Legislature has established a “celling” of General Fund dollars the State can
expend far Bullding Authority debt service. That “celling” Is cuirently 10% of $.01 of the
sales use and motor vehicle taxes Attached to my testimony is a debt service schedule
for all the current outstanding Bulldnig Authority bond Issues along with the proposed debt
service schedule for the Williston State College project scheduled to be sold this Spring
and those projects proposed In Section 1 of Engrossed Senate Bill 2023.

The “celling” Is shown on the debt service chart In the next to last column. | have used
the most recent forecast (March 7) for sales use and motor vehicle taxes income. The third
to last column is the proposed General Fund needs for future biennia. The last column
shows the difference between the estimated General Fund debt service and the forecasted
General Fund debt service limitation. You can see that with the revised forecast (which
lowered the sales tax revenue) the General Fund debt service dollars needed for the
projects in SB 2023 are over the “celling” by an amount of $102,619.

Please note that under the; column headed 2001B, lease (bond) payments do not begin
until the 2003-2005 biennium. For the purpose of this chart | have estimated the interest
rate on tl: . bonds sold under column 20018 at a rate of 5.14%. |If this bill is passed with
the emergern.y clause, and signed into law, the Authority would issue its bonds within the
hext 3 to 8 months, if we can obtaln a favorable rate and depending on when the funds are
needed for construction.

| do want to clarify that the State Facllity Energy Improvement Projects are, by law, not
included under the “celling” since those debt service exponditures will be coming from
energy savings dollars.

Since this bill was proposed the Authority's bond counsel has looked at the language
and has suggested that we include some additional language to make the intent of the
Legislature clearer. |'ve attached the proposed amendments to my testimony. The first
amsendment clarifies that the bond Issue will actually be larger than the construction costs
of the projects—the Authcrity will be bonding for capitalized interest, costs of issuance and
the required reserve funds. The second amendment clarifies that the contributions to be
made by the Department of Health and Job Service is for the principal amount of the

bonds plus interest,
Thank you for the opportunity to present testimony on Engrossed Senate Bill 2023.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2023

Page 1, line 17, after "indebtedness” Insert “in the principal amount of
$12,862,000 plus costs of issuance, capitalized Interest, and any
reasonable required reserves”

Page 2, line 1, replace “$6,656,000” with "$4,067,000" and insert immediately
thereafter “in principal amount plus Interest”, after "be” insert “made”, after
"avallable” insert "by job service North Dakota and state department of
health and $2,699,000 by Minot state university”, and after “to” insert “be
appropriated to the industrial commission to”

Renumber accordingly

If the proposed amendment is adopted for Section 2, it would read as follows:

SECTION 2. BOND ISSUANCE REPAYMENT RESPONSIBILITY. Of
the total amount of evidences of indebtedness issued under the provisions of
Section 1 of this Act, a total of $4,067,000 in principal amount plus interest must
be made available by job service North Dakota and state department of health
and $2,599,000 by Minot state university from nongeneral fund sources to be
appropriated to the industrial commission to assist in the retirement of the
evidences of indebtedness issued for the project costs assoclated with the
construction of the projects authorized by this Act:

State department of health $1,756,000
Job service North Dakota $2,302,000
Minot state university $2,589,000




| Testimony before the
Senate Appropriations Committee
January 18, 2001

~ Pertaining to -
SENATE BILL 2023
, and
THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT'’S FACILITIES MASTER PLAN

Robert Barnett, Interim State Health Officer

Good morning Chairman Nething and members of the Committee, Our testimony today pertains
to & provision in Section 1 of Senate Bill 2023 that authorizes $2,700,000 indebtedness for
construction of an addition to the department’s east laboratory building and to a provision in
Section 2 that pertains to payout of bond indebtedness.

During the last session of the state's legislature, several issues were discussed. Those issues

‘ were:

[ A new location for the morgue.

| The condition of mechanical systems for the two buildings housing the department’s
microbiology, chemistry and crime laboratories.

] A life safety review of the buildings housing the department’s Environmental Health #ih
Section and its laboratory divisions.

| The cross town separation of the department’s staff;, for example, the staff are housed in ‘t b
six buildings on three cumpuses in Blsmarck. H

for this n
This testimony serves as a report about the department’s activities and findings regarding:

‘ o The department’s Facilities Master Plan. Section 8 of the department’s 1999-01
appropriation bill (HB 1004) required the department to develop a definitive plan and




firm cosi estimates for upgrading the department’s laboratories, for providing a state
morgue and for bringing the department’s facilities into compliance with applicable code

requirements,

] Southwest Key, Mandan, The site and buildings on the campus of Southwest Key were
evaluated as a potential option for housing administrative offices of the depariment and
location of two laboratories.

Our testimony provides information that we hope will assist this committee in making an
informed decision about facilities needed by the department.

Actions during the interim

Since the 1999 legislative session, the department awarded a contract to Tricbwasser, Helenske
& Assooiates, Fargo, and Earl Walls Associates, San Diego, California.

In conjunction with the department, the architects evaluated existing facility occupancies, space
functions and space deficiencies for:

] The department’s sections located in the Judicial Wing and the department’s
Environmental Health Section occupying two buildings located at a west campus in
Bismarck,

. The state forensic examiner, his staff and the morgue located at the east campus. The
forensic examiner and his staff occupy tem;jorary space within the East Laboratories
building, and the morgue occupies temporary space within the Training Center.

| The microbiology laboratory occupying one building located at the west campus; and the
chemistry laboratory and crime laboratory also occupying one building located on the
cast campus.




All occupled bulldings on the west campus—located at 1200 Missouri Avenuo—are
leased,

Summary of facility needs

The department’s Facilities Master Plan presumes that forensic examiner services provided
through operation of a morgue will remain here in Bismarck and organizationally affiliated with

the department,

The plan presumes that the crime-toxicology laboratory remains affiliated with the department
rather than re-aligned with the Office of the Attorney General, although the primary customers of
this laboratory are law enforcement officials, The plan accommodates such change, if
implemented in the future.

The plan proposes that the functions of the department’s Division of Vital Records remain
located in its present occupied space in the judicial wing in the event other departmental offices
in the judicial wing are co-located on 4 common campus. Given our experience, we believe the
public enters the capitol facility expecting these functions to be located there.

The plan presumes that the staffing of the department will not grow during the next ten years by
more than eleven full-time equivalent positions,

The Facilities Master Plan makes use of the existing East Laboratories site, the East Laboratories
building and the existing Training Center.

The State Water Commission occupies about 700 gross square feet in the southwest comer of the
East Laboratories building where two of its staff conduct limited analysis of water samples. We
will accommodate their needs at that scale of space until such time that other arrangements are

implemented.




In conjwiction with the department, the architects painstakingly reassessed needed space for
laboratories and the morgue and then trimmed back necded space from 84,906 gross square feet
to 62,411 gross square feet and added 3,000 gross square feet for unheated storage. The
architects’ projected space needed by the administrative units in the Judicial Wing and the
Environmental Health Section were not reassessed; the total space is 80,153 gross square feet.

The plan phases construction and renovation over three biennia. The phased strategy places a
priority on dealing with life safety and space is.ues of the microbjology (public health) and
chemistry laboratories and on removing our obligations in leasing the existing building housing

our microbiology laboratory.

The first phase of the plan, the initial biennium, initiates construction of a building to
house the microbiology and chemistry laboratories.

The second phase, the following biennium, initiates renovation of the existing East
Laboratories building for the crime-toxicology laboratory and construction of an
adjoining building to house the state forensic examiner and the morgue.

The plan delays construction of co-located space for the Environmental Health Section—
which is now scattered in three buildings—and the Judicial Wing to a third biennium.
This strategy retains the flexibility for two biennia to locate the department’s non-
laboratory organizational units on the capitol campus pending outcomes of capitol

campus planning.

Table | summarizes the department’s Facilities Master Plan, as presented to the Interim Budget
Committee on Government Services. Additional cost data are included as presented by the
architects to the department in a supplemental report that also contains detaiied space data.




Table 1, Data from the Department of Health’s Facilities Master Plan,

Net Space | Gross Space
(2) Construction Tots) Cost Bien.
(square feet) | (square feet) Cost 3) Phase
Microblology 1,372 12,710 $245/gas.f, $3,113,950 ]
L. Division
Chemistry 12,035 20,750 $245/ g.s.f. $ 5,083,750 !
L. Division
Field Technician 2,370 3,081 $245/ gs.f. $ 754,845 l
Support Labs.
Unheated storage 3,000 $55/g.s.f. $ 165,000 ]
Subtotal $9,117,545 1
Crime (1) 18,850 $150/ gs.f. $ 2,827,500 2
L. Division
Morgue
East Lab, ¢)) 2,001 $150/ gs.f. $300,150 2
New addition 5,019 $235/ g.s.f. $ 1,179,465 2
Subtotal $4,307,115 2
Environmental 25,338 32,939 $105/gs.f. $ 3,458,595 3
Health Section
Judicial Wing 32,666 4.,466 $105/ g.s.f. $4,458,930 3
Subtotal $ 7,917,525 3
Totals 140,776 (2) $21,342,185 (3) | 1,2&3

and the Morgue,

(2) Data do not include the existing Training Center, which has 5,944 g.s.f,
(3) Architects’ additional costs over the three bienniums: design and construction management -
$2,943,000; construction contingency - $1,067,000; occupancy (equipment, furniture,
telecommunications, etc.) - $2,627,000; and inflation - $4,507,000.

(1) Gross square footage of existing East Laboratory building shared Letween the Crime Division

Finally, the department’s proposed budget for the 2001-2003 biennium includes $965,000 for
occupancy payments. Approximal: 'y 33% of that amount is state funded with general funds.
The amount of $965,000 is about one-half of the annual debt service on repayment of the bonds
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for construction of phase | of the Fucilities Master Plan—but that entire amount would not be
accessible due to the costs for occupancy of leased bulldings that continues through phase 3;
these costs are expected to total about $779,000 per biennjum under current lease arrangements.
The only existing lease we would terminate prior to completion of phase 3 of the Facilities
Master Plan is the current lease on the microblology laboratory building; and the date for such

termination would be about January 2004,

Findings of the Southwest Key campus assessment

In mid-September 2000, the department extended the scope of work with the archlicots to include
appraisal of the Southwest Key facility campus. Their findings, in summary, are:

The Southwest Key facility campus consists of about 82,500 gross square feet of finished
space, exclusive of the existing guest house or the existing shop building, Building
layout and egress configuration provides about 53,375 net square feet for use by the

specific administrative functions of the department, exclusive of laboratories. The
department’s Facilities Master Plan includes 58,002 net square feet for administrative
functions, exclusive of laboratories and the Vital Records Division. It appears the
Southwest Key facility could accommodate these functions, but with some adjustments to
the identified and needed space. However, parking would have to be expanded into
available space on the campus and adjacent streets,

Although the campus site has capacity for additional structures to accommodate the
microbiology and chemistry laboratory needs of the department, the required multi-level
laboratory configuration would not respond efficiently to the needs of the laboratories or
the added parking required. Thus, consolidation of a microbiology and chemistry
laboratory facility to the campus would require acquisition of adjacent properties along
2" Street NW and the /acation of 2™ Street NW.,




3 Southwest Key has two tenants: Housing, Industry and Training, Inc., leases th.; southeast
wing, which is about 11,960 gross square feet, and the Dakota Boy's Ranch leases the
southwest wing, which is about 11,995 gross square feet, for adolescent treatment.

4, Costs assoclated with the acquisition and remodeling of the Southwest Key facillty are
projected at $5,750,835 or about $69 per square foot of gross building area. This
projected cost {s about 65 percent of the cost of new construction identified in the

department’s Facilities Master Plan.

Table 2, Southwest Key Dats

Existing buildings, exclusive of 82,529 gross square feot

shop & guest house

Sale price; includes site $ 2,000,000

($1.75M), sales fees, etc,

Site development costs; e.g., $ 515,000
. parking & ADA, upgrade

Facility repair and upgrade $ 2,292,750

Occupancy allowance; e.g., $ 500,000

equipment & telecommunications

Design fees $310,775

Inflation cost $132,310

Subtotal cost $ 5,750,835

Adjacent land acquisition & $ 875,000 (1)

improvements for laboratories

Total cost $ 6,625,835 (1)

(1) Allows placing the microbiology and chemistry laboratories
across the street from the current Southwest Key campus, but
does not include costs related to construction of & building to
house the two laboratories.
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If SB 2023 is pessed as currently written, vre would build about 11,000 gross square feet on the
east campus. Subsequently, we would expand the department’s Environmental Health Section
into the nearby, leased (and remodeled) building now used for the microbiology laboratory
functions when the microbiology division is relocated into an updated building. (Costs for leases
on the two remodeled buildings would likely increase as owners would expect to recover
remodeling costs.) The options do not include participation in the Capitol Master Plan, as the
status of that plan is unknown.
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Testimony before the
House Apﬁrop tions Commiittee
arch 19, 2001

- Pertaining to -
SENATE BILL 2023

Francis Schwindt, Chief - Environmental Health Section
North Dakota Department of Health

Our testimony today pertains to the $2,700,000 authorization to construct an addition to the
department’s east laboratory building that is included in Section 1 of this bill. This would allow
the Department to address some of the most critical health and safety deficiencies of our

microbiology and chemistry laboratories,

There are a number of health and safety code problems in our facilities that have been identified
through our Master Facility Planning Project. The planning effort was required in this
biennium'’s funding for the Department and the detailed reports have been submitied to the
interim Budget Committee on Government Services. The worst problems are the condition and
inadequate space in the two buildings housing our microbiology and chemistry laboratories. The
microbiology building is leased and the chemistry building is state owned. They are both about

25 t030 years old.

The most serious health and safety probiems are:

1, Inadequate ventilation systems
2, Inadequate chemical and microbiological fume hood exhaust

[r:adequate space for isolation of highly contagious organisms
Expostire to toxic chemicals

Overcrowded working conditions

Inadequate fire code construction, alarms and escape routes
We have had employees treated for chemical exposures

3.
4
5
6
7
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In both our chemistry and microbiology labs, the air handling systems cannot meet the needs of
our current operations. In microbiology, a separate, filtered, single pass air handling system is
needed for the highly contagious analytical areas where tuberculosis, HIV(AIDS), virology,
reference bacteriology and molecular biology work is done. These areas must be isolatcd from
the remaining work areas in a level 3 containment system so contamination of employees and
other work areas does not occur. In chemistry, the ventilation system cannot evacuate chemical
fumes from the analytical work stations nor provide sufficient fresh air to balance the exhaust
alr, ‘The fume hoods and blowers.are corroded from chemical use and their exhaust is drawn

back into the building under certain weather conditions,




Neither building has a fire suppression system and emergency exit times are inadequate because
of the buildings' layouts. Both laboratories are severely overcrowded as new ana!ytical
equipment has been added in response to the demand for new and additional chemical and
microbiological analyses. We now analyze for many organic chemicals, including pesticides,
in drinking water and hazardous waste that were not done ten years ago. Microbiology analyzes
viruses and strains of bacteria unheard of even in the recent past. These have been accomplished
through improved technology and staff specialization but it also requires work space.

In chemistry, employee emergency showers are located in hallways without a floor drain so

contamination of the laboratory would occur if the showers were used to remove a chemical

exposure. If arelease occurred in microbiology, some employees would be exposed as they
tried to exit the building as traffic areas go right through some analytical areas.

This bill would allow us to build an addition of about (0,800 square feet of laboratory space to
our chemistry and crime laboratory building in east Bismarck. We propose to move portions of
the microbiology and chemistry laboratories needing the best ventilation capabilities into this
addition. This would include the organic chemistry analysis, a portion of the petroleum analysis
and the level 3 containment systems for the highly contagious viruses and bacteria. We may not
be able to move all remaining portions of the microbiology laboratory into the space that is
vacated in the chemistry lab. That will require further evaluation,

Other issues that require further evaluation are the needs for the state forensic examiner and
morgue. Currently, the morgue is housed in a converted shop room of our water and wastewater
operator training facility. That presents difficult operations for both the training programs and
forensic examiner. We also neud to update and upgrade the existing chemistry and crime
laboratory portions of the building including the heating, ventilating and air conditioning,

(HVAC) system,

The Department’s budget for the 2001-2003 biennium is approximately two thirds federal funds.
We anticipate continued federal funding and being able to use those funds to repay a portior of
the bonds required for construction.

We request your favorable consideration of this authorization to construct an addition to our
laboratory building, Laboratories have changed dramatically over the last 20 years. We are now
analyzing for chemicals and micrcorganisms that were not even heard of back then, The number
and types of analyses has also increased dramatically, We have kept pace by adding new
technology and automating those processes as much as possible. Now we need to update our
work environment as well to protect our employees.




S8 2023

. Testimony before the Senate Appropriations Committee
By Job Service North Dakota
January 18, 2001

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, | am Wayne Kindem,

Director of Administrative Services for Job Service North Dakota.

Job Service North Dakota dalivers workforce services including
unemployment insurance, reemployment, employment and job training
services throughout North Dakota. The strategy for delivering services is
continually evolving. Customers of workforce services are expecting services
to be readily available and offered in attemative ways. Job Service is changing

. s service delivery sirategy to becorme part of the coordinated worklorce
» development system in North Dakota. Service delivery changes include
increasad use of technology to expand the ways customers can receive
services such as use of telephone, Intemet, or in-person at self-service client
service areas in our one-stop service centers. Providing in-person services at

" customer delivery locations will continue to be important but the mix of self-
service and in-person delivery is changing. Thus, our customer eervice offices
are being renovated to add or expand client self-service areas, Our network of
facilities for the most part Is modem, up-to-date facilities requiring only minor
structural/remodeling changes. The exception is our Bismarck area customer
service delivery office. The Bismarck office facility is totally inadequate for the




continued delivery of quality customer service in the new one stop service
stratogy.

This capital project request Is for replacement of the current Bismarck
area setvice delivery office with an appropriate facility by purchasing land and
construction of an office bulkding. Specifically, this request Is to acquire land
and construct a 17,000 square foot office building located on one level with

" parking sufficient to accommodate 100 cars. The facility layout and
functionality will be consistent with our Grand Forks office facility. The project
cost of $2,302,000 includes {and purchass, architectural and engineering
services , construction costs and provision for contingencies.

Attached to my testimony is a detailed statement of the need for this
new faciity.
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IDENTIPICATION OF NEED

APPROPRIATE DELIVERY OFFICE FACILITY REQUIREMENTD

Job Service customer service delivery in a one-stop environment offers three options to
-customers for accessing services: seif-service, faciitated service, ind assisted service.

Self-service aliows clients to review job search assistance information, schedule into job “earch
workshops, explore training opportunities, place resumes on America’s Talent Bank, register for work,
use resume buikiing software, interviewing skills software, view job seeking assistance video's, etc. This
requires space for cllents to uss PC's, view videos, and read materiai,

Faciiitated service is pravided by customer service advisors who assist the client in locating
service, This level of service is intended for clients having difficulty in using self -help options
and generally resuts in the client being referred (0 one-on-one assistance or group service. Facility
requirements include staff workstations allowing semi-private meetings with clients,

Assisted service is for clients requiring extanded assistance provided by a customer s ervice advisor
in the form of empioyment counsaeling, testing, and scheduling into a workshop or referral to otler
agencies for service, Faciity requirements include private offices, and testing or workshop rooms.

The desired faciity also needs to accommodate employers by providing interview rooms and
mmmawmmwmwwmmm workshops, and testing, Staff meetings
als0 require conference room space. A model customer delivery faciity has been established in Grand
Forks, This faciity, which services a clientele base similar to Bismarck, consists of a single story faciity of
. 17,000 square feet with parkini for 100 cars to accommodate staff and clients.

CURRENT BISMARCK OFFICK FACILITY SITUATION

Tha facity currently used for delivering client sarvices in Bismerck Is a 8,670 square foot structure
with basemant, constructed in 1960. it has 24 parking spaces adiacent to the buliding. This faciity is lotally inadequate
for the delivery of ciient services, Client in-person traffic is significant and continues to increase.

Your Annual in-Person Traffic
1090 58,518
1060 53,262
1997 47,770
1006 43,990
1906 41,808
1994 36,000

The specific deficiencies are numerous including:
Pariing Aveliatilty:

® Psge




Current parking 24
Need 100

100 parking spaces Is adequate based on experience at our Grand Forks, Fargo, and Minot
customer delivery offices. These officcs have a staff and client base simiiar to Bl smarck.

Parking on surrounding stroets is limited to 1 and 2 hour restrictions.

Total Space Availabity:

Currently space is 6,670 on the main floor. The basement is of limited usefulness for service delivery
since there is no elevator and therefore not accessible to many of our clients. {nstalling an elevator is not
cost fee .ible based on bids obtained in the past. Our Grand Forks, Fargo, and Minot offices all have
17,000 - juare feet to acconumodate the same level of staff and client traffic.

Lobby and Client Self-Service Area:

Space availability in the current lobby and client resource area is extremely limited. As we move to
offering services in a one-stop environment the need for adequate space is critical, Increased self-help
access to Internet services, testing, resume software and labor market information will bring additional

clients into cur office.

Employer intervi wo staff meeting aress:

There is very limited space for employers to interview spplicants, Cusrently there is only one room
available for these purposes but experience indicates a need that is much greater, The number and size of
current meeting/conference rooms is also inadequate. We have s high demiand for meeting room space to
conduct applicant and employer workshops, provide for testing, hold informational meetings with staff
and meet with other service providers,

Envitonmenta] lssues:

The cument sir handiing system has 5 heating and § air cooling systems. Even with this number itis
very hard to meintain an even teinprraturs in the building. Some areas of the office are very much affected by

the outside temporature.

Temporwy Accommodations for the Current Deficiencies:

Temporary accommodetions addressing the most significant deficiencies of the current faciity were
implementad in Novermber 1990 by leesing 4,664 square feet of office space. The additional space is on the
second floor of the US Bank bullding located across the sirest from the curent owned office. This additional
space allowed renovation and expension of the client resource area in the owned buliding, Employer services
were moved 1o the leseed space allowing more appropriste spece for providing empioyers with sarvices,
While thic action addressed two critical needs it s viewed as a s hort-term or temporary accommodation for

the following reasons.
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* Two separats facilities are not economical. Additional parking has to be leasaed, janitorial
services must be provided at both sites, duplicative equipment has to be maintained (fax,
copier) and nonproductive staff time is incurred traveling between two sites,

*  One-siop delivery strategy and the Workforce Inves:-ment Act program require partnering .
functions that are diminished by having two physically separate service delivery sites.

o Clients are inconvenienced by going to the wrong location and having to travel to the sacond
location to receive services,

o Certain customers have to go to both locations to receive services.

¢ Som staff must continuously move between the two locations, which is inefficient,

SUMMARY OFf NEED

The current Bismarck office facility is inadequate in terms of parking, total floor space and configuration of
space for one-stop service delivery. it cannot be expanded or renavated to address the identified deficiencies (this
option has been researched with independent architectural consultant assistance). Lessing additional space and

opersting from multiple locations is not a feasible or appropriate long -term solution. An appropriately sized, configured
and located faciiity for delivery of quaiity customer service in the Bismarck service delivery area is needed.




